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About the Boulia Shire Council’s
2016-2017 Annual Report

Purpose

This Annual Report aims to provide residents, ratepayers, the corporate sector, statutory
bodies and other interested parties insight into the primary activities undertaken by, and
the financial position of, the Boulia Shire Council throughout 2016-2017.

Annual Report distribution
Boulia Shire Council’s Annual Report is available in hard copy or electronic format. Printed
copies can be requested in writing to:

The Chief Executive Officer
Boulia Shire Council

18 Herbert Street

BOULIA Q 4829

It is also available by phoning Council’s Administration Centre on (07) 4746 3188 during
normal business hours (8.30am — 5.00pm).

Alternatively, you can visit Council’s website at http://www.boulia.qld.gov.au to
download a copy.

Copies are also distributed to the Department of Local Government, Infrastructure and
Planning, and the Queensland State Library.

Feedback

In the interest of continuous improvement, Council welcomes your feedbackon this report.

Please forward your commentsin writing to the Chief Executive Officer at the address above,
or emailto ceo@boulia.gld.gov.au.


http://www.boulia.qld.gov.au/
mailto:ceo@boulia.qld.gov.au

WHERE TO FIND US



mailto:library@boulia.qld.gov.au
mailto:tourism@boulia.qld.gov.au
https://www.facebook.com/

FOREWORD

Welcome to this Annual Report produced by Boulia Shire Council for the 2016-2017 financial year.
The primary objective of this documentis to articulate Council’s vision and goals, its achievements

and performance results for the past year, and its challenges, opportunities and plansfor the
future.

VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

Vision:
Boulia Shire Council endeavours to provide the community with a well-
resourced, healthy, safe and stable environment.

Mission:
Promote sustainable economic and social growth whilst preserving our
current values.

Values: -

Working with the community for the benefit of the community.
Open communication flow between Council and the community.
Stable, consistent and logical policies to guide the organisation.

High standards of professionalism, equal opportunity and flexibility,
in an atmosphere of trust and teamwork.

Leadership based on integrity.



List of Acronyms used in this report:

AGM

Annual General Meeting

ALGA

Australian Local Government Association

CWRPMG

Central West Regional Pest Management Group

DDMG

District Disaster Management Group (Mt Isa)

LGAQ

Local Government Association of Queensland

NDRRA

Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements

NGA

National General Assembly

OQTA

Outback Queensland Tourism Association

ORRG

Outback Regional Road Group

RAPAD

Central West Queensland Remote Area Planning and Development

RFCS

Rural Financial Counselling Service

RMPC

Roads Maintenance Performance Contract

TIDS

Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme

TMR

Transport and Main Roads

WOQLGA

Western Queensland Local Government Association

Footpaths built with TIDS Funding




COUNCIL PROFILE

Boulia Shire Council is governed by the Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, and four other elected members (Councillors).

These Councillors were elected / re-re-elected in the 19" March 2016 by-election.

Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton
Re-elected 13th April 2016

Deputy Mayor Sam Beauchamp Councillor Brook McGlinchey
Re-elected 13th April 2016, Re-elected 13th April 2016

assigned the position Deputy Mayor

Councillor Allan Robinson Councillor Rebecka (Beck) Britton
Re-elected 13th Apl’ll 2016 Elected 13th Aprll 2016



A little bit about our Shire’s past....

Herbert Street in 1950’s

Boulia.............. Where we started.....

On 31 July 1879, the 1280 acre township reserve
of Boulia was established, and the Boulia Divisional
Board was subsequently gazetted in September
1887. Located on the Burke River, Boulia is said to be
derived from the word ‘water hole’ from the
language of the local Pitta Pitta people.
Boulia is closely related to the famous explorers
Burke and Wills who were the first Europeans to
pass through the area. Burke gave his name to the
John Bates loaded with wool from Canary Station Burke River and the Wills River is situated nearby.
Part of Boulia’s fame rests on the mysterious Min Min
Light, which first appeared around the old Min Min
Hotel, the remains of which are situated
approximately 100km east of Boulia.

Boulia’s early history is based around a few hardy
adventurers and pastoralists in search of new lands,
and with the will to ‘make a go of it’. It is now an
attractive Shire community with a population of
almost 500 people well-serviced by modern facilities.

Howard’s Cottage

The township of Boulia is the pivotal point of the
Far-west, with Mount Isa 300 kilometres to the
north and Winton 366 kilometres to the east. It is
also linked to Alice Springs to the west via the
Donohue Highway. The Shire sharesa 320 kilometre
common border with the Northern Territory and
the southern part of the Shire’s western boundary
marks the eastern edge of the mighty Simpson Desert.

Although once renowned for its wool production,
Boulia is now the centre of a prosperous beef cattle
industry. Tourism is also an emerging industry, with
tourists flocking to the Shire between the months of
March to October. The town is acknowledged as the
Capital of the Channel Country, which gives rise to
the great rivers that flow south to Lake Eyre.

S
Marion Downs No 6 Truck



Urandangi.............. Where we started....

Urandangi, the second town in Boulia Shire, was founded
in 1885 by Charlie Webster and James Hutton who started
ageneral storeandthe town developed from there. It wasan
important centre for travellers and drovers roaming the
Georginaand other stock routes.

The town of Urandangi founded in 1885 on the Georgina
Stock route was a popular stop for drovers before
branching out to Dajarra to the railhead. Urandangi being
the only place of rest for the cattle stockmen and women
with water available in the Georgina river or the stock
trough. Refreshments of cool ale or a rum for any drovers thirst supplies were available from the store

and telephone and mail collection from the Post office.

Up to 100 mobs of cattle came through Urandangi over the droving months which were from March to
December before the wet. usually up to 1500 head of cows, bullocks, mixed sexes as well as breeders
were the 'mob'. Urandangi became a very important c entre for drovers and travellers being close to

the border of the Northern Territory and a short cut to Alice Springs from Mount Isa and the coast.

In its heyday Urandangi boasted two stores, a hotel, dance hall, Post Office, Police Station, school and
several private residences in the 1920's and in the 1930's and 40's there were over 400 people living in
the area. The present Urandangi school opened in 1995 and has all modern facilities for the children

who attend from kindy age to grade six.

Dangi Bush Resort (Urandangi Hotel) offers free camping.

Solar Street Lights

Today the Dangi Bush Resort is the place to be. See the
display of early machinery such as Lister and Southern Cross engines which were used on bores to pump
water and provide electricity to the bush homesteads. Visit the Chinese graves, and feed the animals that

roam the pub grounds.



Our Shire at a glance.....

Shire Land Area:
61,635 Square Kilometres

Average Annual Rainfall:
250 mm

BOU“a Sh‘fe Population:

496

Total Road Length:
1309.8 km

Stabilising Shoulder on the Dajarra Road

The Shire is also well serviced by arterial roads, two of
which are completely bitumen surfaced. The
construction and maintenance of Shire roads does
present challenges because of the sheer size of the Shire,
the weather conditions experienced, and the
distribution of population due to the Shire’s rural
economic base.

The Shire experiences extremes of climate conditions, ranging from massive
flooding to prolonged drought.

Road trains transport cattle throughout the Shire, to and from the Northern
Territory, and to markets to the east.

Urandangi January-2017




Mayoral Welcome

| would like to acknowledge the past and present Traditional Owners of the area known as Boulia Shire:
Pitta Pitta People, Balarnu Waluwarra Wangkayujuru People, Wangkamahdla Nation, Yulluna People, and
Kalkadoon People. (listed in area size largest to smallest)

| am extremely proud to have been elected Mayor following the March 2016 local government elections for a
Third consecutive term. | congratulate Mrs Kelsey Neilson, who served Council for eight years (8), and was
Deputy Mayor since September 2012.

Council’s many achievements, on your behalf, are outlined in the Annual Report and | commend them to you
to read and note actions and future priorities to make this an even more sustainable and responsive Council.
Council has had to meet the many challenges which face a small remote rural Council to ensure our
community has a strong voice in both the Federal and State arenas.

The next challenges for Council are to maintain its financial sustainability rating and to improve the “scale
and capacity”, i.e. population growth and economic development for more local jobs. Council is well
positioned financially and able to meet current levels of service, as is reflected in the achievements outlined
in the Operational Plan. If the Queensland State Government reviews other initiatives such as the redirection
of the Financial Assistance Grants on a needs basis and reduces ‘red tape’, then Council can be even more
efficient and sustainable. Nevertheless, more funding is needed for our roads, and it is a constant battle for
Council chasing roads grants to achieve this.

One of our main priorities is the ongoing development of Australia’s Longest Shortcut — the Outback Way and
sealing of our section of this being the Donohue Highway. The section of the Outback Way between Boulia
and the Northern Territory border is the only section of Outback Way still under Local Government control
which impacts heavily on the limited resources Council has to complete other road projects.

The potential for the Outback Way to improve a growing and more profitable pastoral industry is in the
interest of the State and the nation and will return increased revenue to government. The link opens up the
route for increased access to tourism traffic, the ‘liveability’ of both Boulia, Urandangi and the rural
townships and indigenous communities it passes through by reducing the number of weeks areas are cut off
due to rain events.

In April this year the Federal Government announced that a further $5,000,000 will be released to Boulia
Shire through the Transport and Main Roads Department to continue to seal the Donohue Highway towards
the Northern Territory Border. These funds are part of a $100,000,000 combined package for the Outback
Way which is being developed for approval and release late-2017. Another milestone for Boulia and the
Outback Way.

Looking to the future, Council has been able to finalise the land acquisition process which began in 2010. This
land when developed will see increased residential, rural residential and industrial land available to potential
families and businesses alike. During the past 12 months significant work has been completed within the
several groups | represent on your behalf - one of which is the Inland Queensland Road Action Plan Group
(IQRAP). The IQRAP has submitted abstracts to the Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources
Committee advising of the impacts of road funding on the operations and sustainability of Local Government
and the issue of uncertainty of long-term funding and the associated negative impacts on planning and staff
recruitment, retention and investment into supply chains.



The group consists of 33 Local government councils, Regional Development Australia committees, eight
Regional Roads and Transport groups and RACQ which have jointly developed a plan which can be used to
inform both the Australian and Queensland Government of road funding priorities across the 33 regional,
rural and remote local government areas.

The State Government released $1,000,000 in Feb 2017 to enable local government councils to develop small
infrastructure projects which would improve the liveability of both Boulia and Urandangi townships. Our
Council commenced 22 individual projects which we would never have been able to complete without this
funding. It is greatly appreciated that funding could be provided to councils, by the State, which was able to
be used for projects which had previously been identified in Community Plans. All of these projects are on
schedule and due to be completed in November 2017.

This Council’s focus in the future will be on the economic
development of the Shire to promote further
employment, enhance and retain existing small business
who have made the commitment to base themselves
here as well as attracting new small businesses. Council
has already commenced planning initiatives to address
the development of land within the town area.

The next twelve months will see a new round of
" ) community consultations as Council reviews the
Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton presented a plaque to Mrs Val . . . . .
Spilsbury for 40 years’ service to the Boulia Community. Community Strategic Plan which is due to be renewed in
2019 establishing the key priorities and initiatives of the

Council which is derived from the proposals put forward by the community. | encourage all residents to be
actively involved in the community consultation process providing feedback to Council on what they see as

the key priorities within our community.

In closing, | thank you, the community, my fellow councillors (past and present) and our traditional owners
for your patience and your input in making this the great rural shire that it is.

We have a shire to be proud of, a land to be cared for and a bright future to look forward to.

Thank you.

Mr Eric (Rick) Britton

Mayor
Boulia Shire Council




Message from the Chief Executive Olfficer
v st July 2016 to 30th June 2017 .....

I am pleased to present Boulia Shire Council’s 2016-2017 Annual Report to Residents on
Council’s achievements in 2016-2017 and future priorities for 2017-2018 as outlined in
Council’s adopted Corporate Plan and Annual Operational Plan. Please take time to read
them; they outline the many tasks undertaken and achieved by Council last year. Council, staff
and our external contractors have done an excellent job in meeting our targets and this is
expected to continue into 2018. Our reputation as a small council with the ‘can do’ attitude is
reaching far and wide.

The past financial year was the second year in the four year Corporate Plan (2015-2019). The
Corporate Plan provides the framework for the Annual Operational Plan which is supported
by a comprehensive resourcing strategy which encompasses asset management, workforce
planning and a ten year financial plan. It was also the first year of the new council, elected in
March 2016 which regretfully included the resignation of Councillor Allan Robinson.

Council has ‘fine-tuned’ it’s organisational structure and made some significant changes to
ensure staff roles reflect the changing direction of Council. Over the past 3 years an emphasis
has been placed on meeting compliance expectations and strengthening our reputation as a
council who can deliver. This has been achieved. The change to the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer role to the Director of Works and Operations saw a shift in focus from administrative
functions to the external workforce operations. The increasing requirements to provide
evidence based results in the field has resulted in significant changes to the manner in which
council is required to provide information for funding bodies.

To date, during this 2016/17 period, Strategic Plans have been reviewed for the Boulia and
Urandangi Aerodrome, Roads, Water, Sewer and Waste. Internally, our Roads Management
practices have been improved in consultation with our civil engineering consultants, with
productivity gains identified to complement our Roads Asset Management obligations. In the
future a further review of our levels of service will be completed to ensure our future
sustainability targets continue to be met.

Council continues to support the strong alliances within the Remote Area Planning and
Development Board (RAPAD) (comprising of 6 other councils), the Outback Regional Water
Group, Outback Regional Road Group, Central West Reginal Pest Management Group, Local
Disaster Management Group, Outback Queensland Tourism Association to name a few.

Significantly our membership of the Outback Highway Development Corporation has provided
not only continued work for local staff and contractors but progressed the Donohue Highway
sealing to half way to the Northern Territory border largely due to the funding provided by
both Federal and State Governments and our Council.

..... 11.....



In January 2017 a trial allocation of funding from the State Government (Works 4
Queensland) saw Boulia as the recipient of over $1,000,000 which was untied, and allowed
council to complete some initial infrastructure projects identified in the previous Community
Plan and Corporate Plan which would otherwise have been out of our reach. Many of these
projects are now underway and due for completion in Nov 2017.

During 2016-2017 the vast majority of grant funded projects proposed to be done were
achieved and those which were not completed will be carried over into the next year. Very
few projects were not completed which is a credit to Council, senior staff and operational
staff and contractors.

Council is working hard to make the difficult decisions needed to ensure it is an efficient
entity to provide the services the community seek in a cost effective manner, within the
available resources, and has been laying the platform for this to occur during the term of the
current Council. The challenge is to increase the “scale and capacity” levels and Council
notes that this is increasingly difficult with such a small revenue base which is directly linked
to population.

The future for Boulia lies in its ability to increase the ‘liveability’ of our beautiful outback
oasis sufficiently well enough to encourage strategic investment opportunities which not only
attract business but families.

I would like to thank the Councillors (who lobby on our behalf), staff (who deliver results)
and the contractors who live and work in our town and who work hard to deliver on the
projects which make for a better community for all.

I look forward to working with the community and staff in continuing the good work already
achieved over the past 12 months. Projects for the coming twelve months include a decision
on the feasibility of the construction of upgrading water infrastructure, improving our roads
network and to take advantage of the opportunities the RAPAD group has to offer in the
digital space for tourism to increase our capability to entice people and businesses to
relocate to our town and rural areas.

Thank you,

Ms Lynn Moore
Chief Executive Officer



ACHIEVEMENTS TOWARDS THE AIMS
of the
QUEENSLAND PLAN

Council has taken the following steps to achieving the outcomes identified in the Queensland Plan.

EDUCATION

School Attendance

Council continues to make the Council bus available for the local state school to attend sports
functions and other important events as requested by the Principal. We also continue to support a ‘no

school, no pool’ directive.

Post School Qualification

Council encourages all staff to access certificate
three, four, diploma and degree courses. Council’s
policy provides for support in gaining the
gualification as well as an allowance to encourage
staff to maintain the currency of the qualification.
We have been successful in being supported by
scholarships from LGAQ for a finance officer to
complete her Diploma course.

Council was successful in obtaining partial funding
to engage a trainee administration officer which has
been successful. We also have partnered with
Rainbow Gateway to sign several Host employer
agreements to enable local people to gain
necessary work skills.

COMMUNITY

In Queensland Nobody Gets Left Behind

Council delivers a range of services through the
community to ensure equity across the community.
These include affordable accommodation, Post Office
with banking facilities and fully equipped Sports and
Aquatic Centre.

We Applaud Community Achievers
Council continues to deliver Australia Day Awards
recognising contributions to the community.

Council also recognises the importance of NAIDOC
week celebrations and works in conjunction with
local people to deliver events during the week.

Citizen of the Year Pam Forster
Young Citizen of the Year Jake Britton
Event of the Year Boulia Camel Races &
Boulia Rodeo Association’s Bike Sports
Organization of the Year Boulia Camel Races

Young Sportsperson of the Year Chloe Girdler
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We Capitalise On Unique Regional Opportunities and Assets

Council continues to investigate economic development activities for the community including the
further sealing and development of the Donohue Highway which forms the eastern part of Australia’s
longest shortcut — The Outback Way which links Winton in Queensland with Laverton in Western
Australia.

Council have membership with the Outback Queensland Tourism Association representing western
Queensland.

ECONOMY

Diversification of Economy

Council is actively seeking opportunities for diversification of the local economy with a new proposal for the
industrial land near the airport to be developed once the Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA) terms are
finalised. The finalisation of the acquisition of land on the Selwyn Rd, the airport industrial land and a small
parcel of residential land behind the school will see future development become a reality which will enable
Boulia to expand when ready.

Central Petroleum continue to lease the Council owned depot ready to take advantage of an increase in oil
price.

PEOPLE and PLACES

Older People are Respected and Valued

The Annual Senior Citizens Christmas lunch has become a favourite which is arranged by Boulia Shire
acknowledging the valuable contribution which is made by these elders of the community.

Council also supports the Queensland Country Women’s Association and the older residents of Boulia with
the annual Christmas Picnic Lunch Hampers.

Council have put a proposal to the Federal Government to develop a Wellbeing Centre in the grounds of the
Clinic to be a focal point for visiting service providers enabling increased access without the need to travel.

This same building will also serve as a training centre for health services to improve delivery of preventative
and diversion programs.



INFRASTRUCTURE

Infrastructure Fits Changing Population and Demographics

Boulia has a relatively stable population but without proper planning and sufficient thought being put into
the future we could be left wanting. To this end we are reviewing the long term financial plan in conjunction
with the development of a complete Asset Management system incorporating Asset management Plans for
Road, Water, Sewerage, Building, Footpaths, Open Spaces, Community facilities, and Aerodromes.

The Boulia Town Plan is due for review this year which is a requirement every 10 years. The initial work with
the town Planners and Councillors has been completed and the following stage which is community
consultation will be completed early 2018.



e Vibrant Skies

o Sparkling Evening Stars

e SpectacularSunsets and Sunrises
Natural Landscapes

Native Bird Watching

The Waddi Trees

Burke River

Pitta Pitta Corroboree Tree
Self-drive Loops

e Old Police Barracks

e Min Min Hotel Ruins
e Hamilton Hotel Ruins
e Historic Gravesites

e GeorginaRiver

o The Red Stump

ports and Aquatic

Annual Easter Campdraft

Annual Camel Races

Annual Easter Rodeo

Annual Easter Races




Thanks to several sources of funding in 2016-2017 from the State Government, Foundation for
Regional and Rural Renewal and RAPAD, the Council was able to implement some wonderful
events and upgrading of facilities.

The Boulia Shire Hall rocked out to the yesteryear songs of ABBA
with an ABBA Tribute band from Sydney.

The not Kath and Kim comedy team made an appearance at the
Sports Centre to do a community show.

The gas grills and new floor covering for the racecourse kitchen
were installed late in 2016.

A new disabled access ramp and verandah were added

Howard’s Cottage to Tom Howard'’s cottage at the museum grounds.

A unisex disabled toilet has been installed at the
museum grounds

Two disabled toilets were installed at the racecourse
and a disabled access ramp to the shed.

Funding from this year will enable a skate park and
water bubbler park to be installed in late-2017.

New roadside signage promoting Boulia and its’ attractions has been added on the main approaches to
Boulia.

COMMUNITY SERVICES: Library

Boulia Shire Council provides a modern, welcoming public Library which is open five (5) days each week
Monday to Friday, from 1.30pm-5pm.

It has a private area set aside for community meetings.

The Library offers many services to the community such as:

- Borrowing / lending of books, audio tapes, DVDs
- Free swap books
- Craft / reading time
- Holiday activities
- Free internet access
A play room for toddlers / younger children
- Printing, copying and scanning
- Faxing/e-mailing First Five Program
- Laminating

It is our ongoing mission to provide and maintain a high quality of customer service; and facilities that

encourage a secure, interactive and progressive community lifestyle.
.18,



TOURISM: Min Min Encounter

The Min Min Encounter and Visitor
Information Centre continues to promote the
Shire to all visitors. Tourism Staff attend
consumer trade shows in Queensland and
interstate annually as well as tourism
workshops and meetings.

There is free WIFI available at the Min Min and
visitors can relax in comfortable seating, have
coffee and catch up with their news from
home.

The area can also be hired for small
gatherings such as book signings or art shows.

1 July 2016 — 30 June 2017 Statistics 2016/2017 2015/2016
Min Min Encounter sales $150,583 $147,746
Min Min Encounter visitors 7458 8308

Min Min Encounter Min Min Light show attendees 4485 4686

A new frontage was designed, and installed on the front of the Min Min Encounter which depicts the first
recorded story of the Min Min light sighting by the exhausted stockman.

TOURISM: Stonehouse

1 July 2016 — 20 June 2017 2016/2017

2015/2016

Stonehouse visitors 4140

3388

The Stonehouse cottage and museum continues to
garner interest with the visiting public. The grounds are
often used for events such as Heritage Week or special

themed occasions.

Tom Howard’s cottage in the museum grounds has had a
new verandah and ramp added to it enabling visitors

easier access to the exhibits housed in there. New cement paths and disabled unisex toilet have increased

the usability of the facilities.

TOURISM: Boulia Marine Reptile Fossil Display

The latest addition to the Reptile Display was unveiled at a special event in
April 2017. This was “Percy” the Plesiosaur, so named by one of the local
school children. This Plesiosaur is a unique find in Australia as it is 80
percent complete, and was the last fossil excavated by the late Dick Suter.

The Ichthyosaur fossils are one of Australia’s if not the worlds’ best

displays.

Glass fencing was installed inside the fossil shed to enable better viewing
of all the exhibits, and new information signage has been erected.

.19



Plesiosaur Glass Fencing

TOURISM: Boulia Sports and Aquatic Centre

The Boulia Sports and Aquatic Centre has been the venue for many meetings and workshops whilst the
community hall has been getting remodelled.

School holiday activities continue to please and the well-equipped gymnasium is frequented.

Funding has been successful in early 2016 to enable a new shade cover to be installed over a third of the
swimming pool.

Work begins on the Sports Oval

Sports Oval after resurfacing,
and planting of grasses.

Planting of surface grasses at

the Boulia Oval located on the
south - eastern side of the

Boulia Sports and Aquatic Centre.

...20.....



The 2016- 2017 financial year has been a busy and productive year in terms of activities
undertaken by the Council Works Crews and Contractors.

Flood Damage and our Roads System

A significant amount of flood damage work in the shire has been repaired by local contractors.

January 2015 event valued at $4,831,299 completed

January 2016 event valued at $236,611 completed

February 2016 event valued at $2,300,053, works are well advanced

June 2016 event valued at $1,486,913, works are well advanced

September 2016 event recently approved at $1,625,911, works will commence early in 2018.

Donohue Highway

Total unsealed: 119.3 kilometres Total sealed: 119.4 kilometres

Donohue Highway

This year has seen the completion of the S8m funding

Emergency Landing Strip on the Donohue over 3 years on the Outback Way (the last $2m was in
2016/17). This project has directly resulted in 47.5km of
additional sealing works on the Donohue Highway which
has allowed Council to reach the outstanding milestone
of half the road now being sealed (Boulia - Northern
Territory Border). In addition to the new construction
works, maintenance activities such as reseals and
pavement grading have been completed throughout the
year.

Urandangie North Road Truck Pull-over

Truck Pullover Areas

Construction has commenced on four truck pullover bays
located on the Selwyn Rd, Coorabulka Rd, Urandangi North
Rd and Donohue Highway. The pullover bays will be
completed in the 2017/18 financial year.

Bridge Renewal Works

Bridge maintenance works have been carried out on the Selwyn Road and Donohue Highway.
Works included desilting, guardrail maintenance, structural repairs, and patching on the approaches.

W21



The Main Roads Network

Works on the Main Roads network entailed:

General maintenance tasks such as sign and guide post replacement $ 334,665.70

Edge repair works and patching

$ 161,048.26

Replacement/ repairs to grids

$ 154,240.00

Weed spraying

S 48,680.00

Bitumen reseals

$1,435,698.00

Pidgeon Creek culvert reconstruction

$ 262,885.20

Pave and Seal at Marion to complete the sealed link between Boulia and Bedourie | $1,051,859.90

Total | $3,449,077.06

Sewer Works

Fifty per cent of town’s Sewer realigning have been successfully completed. It
wouldn't have been possible without Local Government Grants and Subsidies

Program from the Department.

During the year all the sewer manholes were inspected, raised as required and
painted in preparation for sewer relining of the remaining network towards the

end of 2017.

Sections of the town sewer network that are unable to be relined have been dug
up and replaced near the pump station. These were known trouble spots and were

responsible for the majority of the blockages.

Water Works

The ground level reservoir roof was replaced which
will provide improved outcomes for water quality and
public health. In addition, materials have been
ordered to construct a raw water manifold to allow
the installation in the future of a chlorine disinfection
system.

During the year the water mains were air-scoured as
part of a regional collaboration with six other RAPAD
councils in western Queensland. These works involved
cleaning the mains with high pressure air and water to
remove built up sediment and algae.

A de-silting exercise was conducted on the main water

storage tank removing many years of sediment.

This

project was also a regional collaboration with the

RAPAD group of councils.

Stormwater

Materials were purchased to undertake some repairs to
cross road, stormwater drainage culverts. Works will be

completed in late 2017.
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Footpaths around town

Recently, extensive footpath works were undertaken throughout the town. The works involved
replacement of footpaths in poor condition and the installation of new footpaths at key areas. New
accessible ramps in these areas have also been constructed. Nearly 400m of new/replacement footpaths
have been completed including the link to and from the caravan park to town also with the provision of
solar lighting along this footpath.

Robinson Park Upgrade

Works have commenced at Robinson Park
for the Skate Park. (The works will be
completed in late 2017.) Robinson Park’s
re-design includes wheelchair accessible
footpaths and BBQ area, a new
amphitheatre, and new playground
equipment.

Pool Shade Structure and Splash Park

Procurement has been completed, and a
contractor engaged to complete the pool shade
structure and splash park. Works will be
completed July 2017.

The new structure is a solid structure which covers
the pool on each side, and will also provide shade
to the newly designed splash park.
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New Depot Office

Procurement has been completed and a contractor engaged to complete the New Depot Office.
Works will be completed late 2017.

This project has been designed to provide modern, clean office facilities within the Depot precinct.
The newly appointed Director of Works and Operations will be based there.

New Jockeys Change Room
Procurement has commenced on the new Jockeys Change Room located at the racecourse. Works

will be completed late 2017.

This project will see a long overdue improvement in facilities which will meet racing standards.

Work Camp

The work completed this year with the help of this crew has been nothing short of astounding. We
are grateful to have this opportunity to complete things which would ordinarily be out of our grasp.

Work Camp Crew have:

- designed and constructed the disabled ramp at the Racecourse
- completed fencing

- mowing for the elderly

- maintenance at the cemetery

- painting the guttering in the main street —

to list a few of their achievements during their visits to Boulia.

Plant Replacement

PLANT DESCRIPTION S (GST excl)
Fogger Machine S 6,030.00
Kubota Ride on Mower S 15,329.09
Kubota 4X4 Cab Tractor S 46,024.18
Isuzu FRR110260 Long Wheel Tip $103,658.77
FOGGER
Concrete Truck FXZ1500 $173,064.77
Toyota Hilux 4X4 Ute $51,348.42 Council instigated an informal Plant
Toyota Hilux 4X4 Ute $51,348.42 Committee to review Council’s plant and
) equipment purchases and usage. The
Toyota Hilux 2WD Ute $27,513.03 L !
emphasis is on value for money with future
Toyota Landcruiser Prado GX $62,116.23 work plans and needs reviewed on a
Toyota Hilux 4X4 Extra Cab &/53,536.52 quarterly basis. Through this process the
group identified the need which was ratified
Total $589,969.43 by Council.
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STATUTORY REPORTING

(L —R): Councillor Allan Robinson, Councillor Rebecka Britton, Mayor Eric Britton,
Chief Executive Olfficer, Ms Lynn Moore, Councillor Sam Beauchamp, Councillor Brook McGlinchey

Council Meetings

Elected members form the decision-making body of Council, and matters for consideration are directed through
regular Council meetings. Ordinary Meetings of Council are held approximate to the third Wednesday of every
month. Special Meetings are convened where necessary to consider specific items such as budget, major projects
and future strategicdirection.

Like Ordinary Meetings, Special Meetings comprise all members of Council and are called asand when required to
attend to any urgent business of Council. All meetings are open to the public, unless Council resolves, under
Section 275 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, that a meeting be closed. Council, from time to time,
needs to discuss matters such as contracts, staff, industrial and legal proceedings ‘in confidence’ and closes
that part of the meeting to public.

Public notice of days and times of meetings is given each month and copies of the agenda for each meeting are
available for public inspection at Council’s Administration Centre (Herbert Street, Boulia) or on the Council’'s web
site at least two days prior to eachscheduled meeting.

COUNCILLORS: Meetings Attended [s 186(c)]

Meeting date Mayor Deputy Mayor Councillor Councillor Councillor
Eric (Rick) Britton | Sam Beauchamp Allan Robinson Brook McGlinchey Rebecka Britton

20.07.2016 1 1 1 1 1
31.08.2016 1 1 1 1 1
23.09.2016 1 1 1 1 1
26.10.2016 1 1 1 1 X
30.11.2016 1 1 1 1 1
16.12.2016 1 1 1 1 1
18.01.2017 1 X X 1 1
22.02.2017 1 1 X 1 1
20.03.2017 1 1 X 1 1
19.04.2017 1 1 1 1 (teleconference) 1
02.06.2017 1 1 X 1 1
21.06.2017 1 1 1 1 1(%)

TOTAL 12 11 8 12 11

(%) At the Ordinary Meeting of Council on 21 June 2017, Councillor Rebecka Britton commenced her role as Deputy Mayor
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COUNCILLORS: Remuneration and Superannuation [s 186(a)]
Employer
Superannuat
Name Role Travel Remuneration ion Total
Eric (Rick) Britton Mayor ST $83,736.52 $10,055.97 $93,792.49
Sam Beauchamp Deputy Mayor S 262.50 $34,688.71 $4,165.87 $39,117.08
Rebecka Britton Councillor S 900.00 $26,718.17 $2,605.17 $29,323.34
Brook McGlinchey Councillor S $25,520.24 S $26,421.14
Allan Robinson Councillor S $24,537.21 S 353.88 $24,891.09

(*) At the Ordinary Meeting of Council on 21 June 2017, Councillor Rebecka Britton commenced her role as Deputy Mayor.

COUNCILLORS: Expenses Incurred by and Facilities Provided
to each Councillor [s 186(b)]

ACCOMMODATION CONFERENCES
NAME TRAVEL & MEALS & SEMINARS

Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton $8,332.10 $6,284.90 $5,090.75
Councillor Rebecka Britton $1,267.20 S 895.37 $1,845.45
Councillor Sam Beauchamp S S 535.00 ST
Councillor Brook McGlinchey ST S T
Councillor AllanRobinson ST ST S

TOTAL $24,250.77 $9,599.30 $7,715.27 $6,936.20

NAME

CONFERENCES/WORKSHOPS/MEETINGS ATTENDED

Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton

RFCS Meeting, Outback Highway AGM, LGAQ Annual Conference, RAPAD
Meetings (Quarterly), Elected Member Training, Department of Local

Government Induction Training, WQLGA Conference, RDA, IQRAP, SES,
Rural Fires, ALGA, ORRTG, ORWA, CWRPMG

Councillor Rebecka Britton

Elected member training, , WQLGA Conference, OQTA, Department of Local
Government Induction Training, ARTN, Housing Committee, RADF, RAPAD,
ARTOUR

Councillor Sam Beauchamp

LGAQAnNnual Conference, Elected member training, WQLGA Conference, SES,
ALGA, Department of Local Government Induction Training, Plant Committee,
Boulia Historical Society

Councillor Brook McGlinchey

Elected member training, WQLGA Conference, Department of Local Government
Induction Training, Housing Committee

Councillor AllanRobinson

Elected member training, Department of Local Government Induction Training,
WQLGA Conference
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COUNCILLORS: Committee Representation

Councillors have individual responsibilities with one or more of these groups who they represent on your behalf:

EXTERNAL COMMITTEES REPRESENTATIVE/S

Outback Highway Development Committee - Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Councillor Brook McGlinchey,
Representative - (OHDC) Councillor Allan Robinson

Remote Area Planning and Development Board - Mavyor Eric (Rick) Britton, Deputy Mayor,

Board Member - (RAPAD) Councillor Rebecka Britton

Outback Regional Roads and Transport Group —

Representative (ORRTG) Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Councillor Allan Robinson

Outback Regional Water Group -
Representative (ORWG) Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Deputy Mayor

Central West Regional Pest Management Group
Representative (CWRPMG) Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Councillor Brook McGlinchey

Local Disaster Management Group —

Chairperson (LDMG) Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Deputy Mayor

Local Disaster Management Group —

Deputy Chairperson - (LDMG) Deputy Mayor, Councillor Brook McGlinchey

Inland Queensland Road Action Plan Group -

Representative - (1Q-RAP) Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Councillor Allan Robinson
Western Queensland Local Government Association Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Councillor Allan Robinson,
Representative -(WQLGA) Councillor Rebecka Britton

Australian Local Government Association

Representative - (ALGA) Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Councillor Rebecka Britton

Far West Alliance — Tourism Barcoo, Boulia, Diamantina

- Representative Councillor Rebecka Britton, Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton

Outback Queensland Tourism Association -

- Representative Cr Rebecka Britton, Councillor Brook McGlinchey

Boulia Historical Society Deputy Mayor, Councillor Brook McGlinchey

Housing Committee Councillor Brook McGlinchey, Councillor Rebecka Britton
Audit Committee Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Deputy Mayor

Modern Award /Enterprise Bargaining Committee Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton, Deputy Mayor

Plant Committee Councillor Allan Robinson, Deputy Mayor




Senior Management Remuneration

The following information is listed in

increments of $100,000 of the Senior 2Ll )OI 3's
Management of Boulia Shire Council Nil $200,000-$300,000
for the 2016-2017 financial year. Two $100,000 -$200,000

Particular Resolutions [s 185]

Capitalisation Thresholds [s 206(2)] of the Local Government Regulation

Pursuant to section 185 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, it is reported that no resolutions were
passed under section 206(2) of the regulation. This provision deals with any resolutions passed that sets an
amount for each different type of non-current asset. The notation of how Council deals with this is listed in
Note 12 in the financial statements.

All items of plant and equipment with atotal value of less than $5000, and infrastructure assets and buildings
with atotalvalue of lessthan $10,000 are treated asan expense in the year of acquisition.

All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised.

Expenses Reimbursement Policy  [s 250(1)] of the Local Government Regulation 2012
Pursuant to section 185 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, it is reported that in April 2016, Council
reviewed its Councillor Expenses Policy No. 111. Council passed a resolution pursuant to section 250(1) of the
Regulation, however, no additional entitlements or provisions were added to the policy in 2017. The policy was
merely reviewed aspart of ageneral policy review.

This policy will provide the guidelines and procedures for the reimbursement of Councillors for expenses
incurred in attending to and discharging their official duties as representatives of Boulia Shire Council. A copy of
the policyisavailable from Council’s Website.

Conduct and Performance of Councillors

In accordance with section 186 (d) (e) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the following is provided
involving disciplinary action for misconduct taken by a regional conduct review panel:

DESCRIPTION NUMBER
The total number of orders and recommendations made under Nil
section 180(2) or (4) of the Act

Total number of orders made under section 181 of the Act Nil

The name of each Councillor for whom an order or recommendation was made Nil
under section 180 of the Act or an order was made under section 181 of the Act

Adescription of the misconduct or inappropriate conduct engagedin by each of the Nil
Councillors

Asummary of the order or recommendation made for each Councillor Nil




In accordance with section 186(f) of the Local Government Act 2009, the following is provided involving
disciplinary action for misconduct taken by a regional conduct review panel:

DESCRIPTION NUMBER
The number of complaints about the conduct or performance of Councillors for

which no further action was taken undersection 176C(2) of the Act Nil
The number of complaints referred to the department’s Chief Executive under

section 176C(3)(a)(i) of the Act Nil
The number of complaints referred to the Mayor Eric (Rick) Britton under section

176C (3)(a)(ii) or (b) (i) of the Act Nil
The number of complaints referred to the department’s Chief Executive under

section 176C(4)(a) of the Act Nil
The number of complaints assessed by the Chief Executive Officer as beingabout

corrupt conduct under the Crime and Corruption Act Nil
The number of complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel Nil
The number of complaints heard by the tribunal Nil
The number of complaints to which section 176C(6) of the Act applied Nil

Administrative Action Complaints

In accordance with section 187 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council makes a genuine
commitment to dealing fairly with administrative action complaints. This is achieved through the
adoption of policies and procedures designed to provide confidence in Council’s ability to provide feedback
and deal with complaints in a fair and equitable manner. The following particulars are provided:

DESCRIPTION NUMBER

Total number of administrative action complaints madeto the local government Nil

Total number of administrative action complaints resolved by the local government
under the complaints management process Nil

Total number of administrative action complaints not resolved by the
local government under the complaints management process Nil

Total number of administrative action complaints under paragraph (a)(iii) that were
made in a previous financial year Nil

Overseas Travel s.188
No Councillors or employees of Council undertook any overseas travel during the financial year.



Expenditure on Grants to Community Organisations [s.189(a)]

The following expenditure on grants to community organisations were made during the financial year:

GRANTS TO COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS PURPOSE OF ALLOCATION AMOUNT ($)
Abba Community Concert Venue and equipment 1,100.00
Boulia Camel Races Venue, bus and plant hire, labour and stores 66,763.29
Boulia Regional Arts Council Inc Venues 195.00
Boulia State School Venue and bus hire 3,644.00
Boulia Community Services Venue hire 338.00
Assembly of God Church Venue and equipment 693.00
Queensland Country Women’s Association Venue hire and photocopying 298.00
Boulia Golf Club Bus hire 240.00
Boulia Turf Club Venue and Bus Hire 2,550.40
Easter Carnival (Racing, Rodeo and Venue, Bus Hire 15,822.31
Donations under $1,000 Various requests for community benefit 1,1247.00
Total Contributions to Community Organisations $ 92,891.00

Expenditure from each Councillor’s discretionary fund [5.189(b)]

The Boulia Shire Council does not have any Councillor’s discretionary funds.

Reserves and Controlled Roads

The Boulia Shire Council controls:--
(a) Forty(40) parcels of landtotalling 22,633.6 hectares that are reserves under the Land Act;
(b) Noroadsthat Council does not own.

Changes to Tenders
Aninvitation to change tender unders.228(7) was issued during the year:
TENDER No TENDER DESCRIPTION ADDENDUMS
No.1 - Amendment to Schedule
. . No.2 - Amendment to Schedule
T2016/17-1 Spray Bituminous Products No.3 - Amendment to Schedule
No.4 - Amendment to Schedule
T2016/17-2 Supply, Delivery and Pre-coating Cover Aggregate DT, A i E Seeei
PR, ¥ & geree No.2 - Amendment to Schedule
T2016/17-9 Pool Shade Structure Addendum No.1 - Additional Details
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FIVE (5) YEAR CORPORATE PLAN  s.190(a)

Council has adopted the five year Corporate Plan for the period 2015-2019.

Highlights of the strategies completed during the financial year are set out
in the following pages in the CEO Report on the Corporate Plan Progress.

Environment
Preserve the pristine natural resources of the Shire by managing the
environment in a sustainable manner.

Social
Maintain the quality of life by providing facilities and resources that
support community needs.

Economic

Foster a sound economic base to enhance the prosperity of the Shire
which supports growth.

Governance
Effectively and efficiently manage Council legislative responsibilities
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Annual Report - Operational Plan - Work Completed

Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed Report
Date

Environment

Preserve the pristine natural resources of the Shire by managing the environment in a sustainable manner

Water - Provision of an abundant quantity of quality water.
Ongoing membership with Outback Regional Water Group to take advantage of economies of scale savings in infrastructure and maintenance.

Mayor Strengthening regional Attendance at the meetings via Quarterly face to face meetings and monthly teleconferences keep 100 30/06/2017
relationships within the seven teleconference and in person to lobby the group on track. The group have developed the Strategic
RAPAD councils by actively for increased regional cooperation to Implementation Action Plan which is a 5 year plan focussing on
supporting regional objectives for reduce costs for smaller councils. water - the source, treatment, distribution, capture, sewerage
water treatment. treatment and sewerage discharge.
ENGR Water regulations are complied  Attendance at the Outback Regional Joint projects within the RAPAD group have generated significant 100 30/06/2017
with and economies of scale can ~ Water Group technical group meetings savings for the council for main scouring, reservoir cleaning project
be utilised while working with the on behalf of Boulia Shire Council to and the installation of a new reservoir roof.
RAPAD group of councils. secure the best outcomes for Boulia's

water supply.

Sewerage and Waste - Provide sustainable and environmentally sound sewerage and waste services within the shire.
Develop and review management of waste disposal services to the community

RUS-Town Boulia and Urandangi refuse Operations of refuse collection Recent inspections by the EPA have identified several areas which we 80 30/06/2017
collection is at a high standard, operations in Boulia & Urandangi need to address to maintain our licence due to changes in
complies with legislation, maintained at a high standard. legislation.

decreases costs whilst still
complying with environmental
regulations

Environment and Natural Resources - Actively maintain practices which ensure environmental sustainability
Actively support the Regional Bio-Security group and maintain pest management plans and strategies

RLPO Implement the Regional Bio- Bio-Security Plan implemented in New agreement is being presented through Bio-Security which 70 30/06/2017
security Plan as endorsed by conjunction with Council’s RLPO’s and RAPAD is reviewing to ensure we do not re-invent the wheel as
Boulia Shire council. CWRPMG and Bio-security. RAPAD already had adopted the Central West Regional Pest

Management Plan.

RLPO Conduct regular wild dog baiting  Twice yearly baiting programs to be 1080 baiting completed as required by landholder requests. 100 30/06/2017
programs completed



€€

Support initiatives for future Stock Route Management under the guidelines of the Department of Natural Resources

Officer

RLPO

What Output How Activity

Boulia Stock Route Policy is Monitoring of stock routes in
developed covering travel permits, accordance with the policy
water agreements, leases and

maintenance of infrastructure

which also covers pest weed and

feral animal control.

Plan, develop and promote appropriate eco-tourism ventures.

CSM

Tourism opportunities are in line  Famils conducted within the Three
with the Three Way Alliance and
support increased visitation in

Boulia.

of the entire Western Corridor.

Alliance partners to improve knowledge

Work Completed

Submission prepared and submitted with the Mayor lobbying to

have an onsite visitation completed. Stock Route Management
Parliamentary Committee were invited to visit Boulia to see first hand
the limitations of the policy in remote western Queensland. The bill
was rejected and will be reviewed.

Famils completed in September to Barcoo. Joint visitation to caravan
and camping shows with Alliance partners. Joint attendance with the
Far West Alliance was completed in Feb 2017.

Planning and Development - Facilitate land and infrastructure development that meets the needs of the community
Develop an Open Space Plan which meets the needs of the community for Boulia and Urandangi

DWO

DWO

Complete a review of future land developments in conjunction with Boulia Town Planning Scheme and Native Title implications.
Agreement signed between Council and

CEO

Use of the town parks meet the
needs of the community and are

user friendly the town parks.

Use of the town parks meet the
needs of the community and are

user friendly the town parks.

Establish an agreement with the
Pitta Pitta people to facilitate the Pitta Pitta group
acquisition of Native title land

and release of additional land for

development

Plan developed in conjunction with the
community for the facilities in each of

Plan developed in conjunction with the
community for the facilities in each of

Funding submission to be prepared for design and upgrade of
Robinson park and Urandangi open space areas. Community
meeting held with limited input. Design proposal to be completed
with W4Q funding enabling commencement of the project.

Design and upgrade of Robinson park and Urandangi open space
areas. Design proposal is completed with W4Q funding enabling
commencement of the project.

Several parcels of land which have been under negotiation since
2010 have now had Titles issued and the land is now in councils
name ready for future development when funds/ demand warrants
progression. Further negotiations to be progressed for the airport
industrial land extension.

Identify flood free town allotments and Industrial Sites to encourage settlement.

DWO

Average Percentage Work Completed for this Triple Bottom Line Group

Land in Boulia is identified for

potential sale made available to the general public.

Existing land which is able to be sold is

House at 8 Mulligan Street has been identified for sale by tender
which closed 27th February 2017. As no tenders were received a
further revaluation is to be sought to enable council to sell on the
open market.

% Completed

100

100

50

50

90

100

92.8%

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

31/03/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed

Social

Maintain the quality of life by providing facilities and resources that support community needs.
Disaster Management - Provide coordinated and resourced delivery of emergency services.

Ensure adequate disaster management planning and awareness are supported by using local knowledge and regular meeting attendance.

CEO Identify extent of equipment and Updated equipment list provided to Slide on fire tenders received and stored at the SES depot. All Terrain 100
personnel that may be used in District Disaster Management Group vehicle for the SES Boulia group has been received with trailer as part
emergency situations. of grant funding from SES and also by council. Updated lists advised

to DDMG.

Document 'local knowledge' on flood events with a focus on rural property information.

CSM General public are aware of what Annual campaign to 'Get Ready' for the Get Ready campaign - first aid kits ordered (60) for distribution. 100
to do in an emergency and who to storm season $5000 budget
contact

CEO Records of local flood and Accurate records kept of all event 18th January 2017 activation meeting held with notes on activities 100
emergency events which can be  activations through LDMG with completed
used for future information available to DDMG Mt Isa Six (6) activation meetings held during this year

projection / information

Lobby to improve UHF and Mobile Phone coverage by provision of additional towers

CEO Improved communication Identification of all areas which are ADSL+2 exchange upgrade in Boulia - negotiations completed with 100
throughout the shire for deficient in mobile coverage. Prioritised funding provided by council and LGAQ to assist with the
residents and travellers. listing of those identified areas with implementation. Upgrade expected to be completed Aug 2017.

applications submitted when Mobile phone coverage approved for Urandangi supported by council.
opportunity arises.

Implement strategies to ensure that emergency services are well resourced and have strong volunteer support.
EX-ASSIST  Emergency services have Notices in the CCC on how to assist or Notices and information provided in CCC for the Fire Brigade and SES 100
improved community awareness  volunteer to help in an emergency.
of the role they provide

Education - Support the extension and enhancement of educational and training opportunities throughout the shire.
Proactively support projects which will contribute positively to education and training within the shire.

HR Work experience apprenticeships, Support work experience intakes within 1. Trainee in administration with funding support from the State 100
local employment schemes adult  budget constraints Government. 2. Host employer agreements to be finalised to engage
education programs, plant several Rainbow Gateway participants to obtain useful skills within a

ticketing/ licensing encouraged work environment.

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017



13

Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed Report

Date
Support the provision of scholarships, traineeships and apprenticeships as a council commitment to the future.
HR Increased opportunities for local ~ Succession planning tool used to Application for the 'First Start program' completed and we were 100 30/06/2017
people to gain employment within forecast future labour requirement of successful in obtaining a grant for $13K to support a trainee.
the council. council. Contact with training

organisations updated for changes in
workplace financial support.

Cultural Facilities & Services - Provide facilities for arts and cultural activities and the preservation of historic and heritage artefacts.
Utilise existing council resources to preserve Indigenous and non-Indigenous culture.

CSM Oversee Regional Arts Develop Committee formed which has formulated Program availability advertised in the Channel Country Chatter, 100 30/06/2017
Fund program guidelines over which to operate and Facebook and councils web page. The committee consists of 4
approves grants which are submitted for community members and 2 Councillors. Funding allocated within
local projects. Budget.
CSM Develop traditional owner signage Assist in accordance with the ILUA to No progress made in this area. Changes to the group structure. 50 30/06/2017

in conjunction with Native Title develop signage with local traditional
owners for Native Title Projects owner input and install signage within
eg. Stories / area boundaries budget

Provide a library service in the shire that meets the needs of the community

CSM Access to a wide selection of Provide resources in the library to engage  The library continues to provide a wide resource to the community 100 30/06/2017
reading and library activities and  citizens. Provision for the ordering of with free internet access and now has free wi-fi. Customer requests for
materials for all sections of the external reading material through State library material ordered.
community Library.

Maintain functional Community infrastructure e.g. Racecourse / Rodeo / Horse/ Sporting complex and investigate additional facilities which provide

DWO All facilities owned by the council Identify projects which will extend the life  As part of the $1.5m government drought funding allocation to 100 30/06/2017
are utilised to the fullest capacity of each of the facilities drought affected communities the following has been identified:
over their useful life. refurbish the interior of the shire hall including a new kitchen

(approved/work to be completed March 2018); improvements to
the racetrack fencing (completed); ; improvements to the jockey
change area (approved/design finalised)

CEO Ensure the council provides Develop an Open space Plan to identify Funding submission completed for redesign of Robinson park open 50 30/06/2017
facilities which meet community  future needs of the Council facilities space including a skate park; redesign the children's pool into a
needs which relates to budget. 'bubble water park' accessible after hours when the pool is closed.

Community Services - Provide and support improved access to services within the shire.

Provide adequate recreation facilities within the shire by developing the Open Space Plan, Recreational Facilities Plan.
RUS-Town Provide appropriate facilities for ~ Levels of service for all parks and gardens Levels of service to be developed with the new parks and gardens 50 30/06/2017
passive recreation (well to be developed. supervisor.
maintained parks)
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Officer

DWO

Sports

RUS-Town

What Output

Boulia Swimming pool shaded
roof area project to be completed
and installed when funding
received.

Promote the Boulia Sports &
Aguatic centre.

Improved access for football /
cricket activities on the Boulia
town oval

How Activity

Design completed and shovel ready
project to be completed for submission.

Regular advertisements in the CCC and
flyers on the activities of the sports
centre.

Grassed area to be scheduled for
mowing, watering and fertilising on a
regular basis

Work Completed % Completed
Grant funding submission approved $124,800,with $83,200 50
contribution by council design of the new structure completed with

tenders to be sought in Jun 2017. Estimated completion Nov 2017

with total project cost of $208,000

Outside of hours access with the 3 month membership key has been 100
successful. Removing the fee entry for local residents has not

increased attendance significantly at this stage. Increased activity in

the sports centre has seen an increase in children attending.

Oval improvement is ongoing with grass seed laid and new watering 100

system purchased.

Community Development - Support opportunities to develop the community through partnerships.
Continue support for access to reliable, affordable and appropriate power supplies, communication services to all areas within the shire

DWO

Actively support local community and

CSM

Mayor

CEO

Improve essential infrastructure
in Urandangi including power,
water and communications.

Support local community
functions e.g. Anzac Day,
Australia Day etc

Local events and activities
supported by the Mayor and or
Councillors

Local non-profit organisations
supported to be able to continue
with their annual events

Investigate alternative options and seek
funding for power, water supply and
lighting in Urandangi. Mobile Blackspot
funding to be registered for locations
each year.

non profit groups

Organise and facilitate local groups to
deliver programs for events as well as
arrange Council promoted events.

All local events to be attended by at least
one Councillor in his/her official capacity.

In kind support to non-profit
organisations to be continued in line
with budget considerations.

Submission to Telstra for the first round funding for mobile 100
blackspot funding completed and successful. We are now waiting on

installation. New solar panels for the water supply have been

installed at a cost of $50,000. 12 new solar lights have now been

provided for street lighting in Urandangi at a cost of $9,600.

Australia Day Awards were successful with a good turn out on the 100
day. ANZAC Day celebrations well attended with breakfast provided.

Australia Day celebrations were attended by Councillor Beck Britton, 100
Councillor Brook McGlinchey and Councillor Sam Beauchamp.

Mayor Rick Britton was absent due to a fear of measles

contamination after a flight from Townsville. Councillor Beck Britton

travelled to Urandangi to the meet your neighbour day and

presented the Citizen of the Year Award to Pam Forster as she was

unable to attend due to flooded road conditions on the day.

Council contributions for local community events allocated total 100
$56,578 with a total expected budget of $100,000. This provides

assistance for events for Camel Races, Rodeo, Easter Races,

QCWA and numerous other events.

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer

What Output

How Activity Work Completed % Completed

Actively support relevant regional development organisations and groups

Mayor

Mayor

Mayor

CEO

CEO

Active membership of the
Outback Highway Development
Committee to support future
Highway between Boulia and Alice
Springs/ Laverton.

LDMG-Support for the group
which is required to meet twice
per year pre and post season and
is supported by the Mt Isa
Disaster Coordination Centre. It is
on call for any emergency
requirements.

WQLGA-Western Queensland
Local Government Association.
This group meets once per year
and submits motions for
discussion on Council issues
which will be brought for review
to the Australian Local
Government Association lobby

group.

CWRPMG-Central West Regional
Pest Management Group- The
group works together to review
regional progress in pest and
weed management in line with
new Bio-security requirements

LDMG-Support for the group
which is required to meet twice
per year pre and post season and
is supported by the Mt Isa
Disaster Coordination Centre. It is
on call for any emergency
situations.

Regular attendance at meetings Initiatives  Continued efforts by this group have culminated in $100,000,000

implemented. Feedback provided to funding announcement from the Federal Government. From this
councillors on progress. Council to bucket of money Boulia will also receive a further $5m to upgrade
nominate a Councillor to represent the Outback way sections of road.

Boulia.

Continued representation as the LDMG- Mayor Rick Britton is the Chairperson, with Councillor Sam
Chairperson for the Local Disaster Beauchamp as the Deputy Chair. CEO Lynn Moore is the XO. A new
Management Committee. Council to Deputy XO is Harin Karra.

nominate a Councillor from the report on
Committee membership.

Motions on issues which reflect regional The last meeting was in May in Barcaldine and council submitted a
or local issues are collated and submitted motion on behalf of the shire - Donohue Highway to be proclaimed
to WQLGA for the benefit of all residents a State Road.

of the shire. Attendance at both the

WQLGA and ALGA to promote local and

regional issues. Councillor nominated.

Attendance at all meetings which are Mayor Rick Britton is the nominated councillor with Councillor
collated to occur with the RAPAD group Brook McGlinchey as the alternate attendee. Council have endorsed
meetings. Council to nominate a the Bio-Security Plan Ver 3 Feb 2015 details of which are on the
Councillor from the report on Committee council website. Councils Rural Land Protection Officer (RLPO) also
membership. attends the groups meetings as required.

Continue as Executive Officer (XO) LDMG group met in Jan 2017 as a result of the flood activation
provide support to the group, arrange bi- warning in the northern part of the shire. Field exercises completed
annual meetings and reporting functions in June with the assistance of QFES and DDMG in Mt Isa and the SES

to DDMG in Mt Isa. Council to nominate Bi-annual meetings to review the LDMG manuals have been completed.
a Councillor at the annual report on
Committee membership.

100

100

100

100

100

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer What Output

RAPAD-A collusion of seven
Councils - Barcoo, Blackall-
Tambo, Boulia, Diamantina,
Longreach, Winton and
Barcaldine who work together for
regional outcomes with local
input.

Mayor

CSM OQTA- Support the Outback
Queensland Tourism Association
in recognition of the remote
Western 'belt' as a tourist
destination.

Boulia Historical Society- Council
to support the group with
Councillor representation.

Mayor

How Activity

Active involvement in this regional group
by raising Boulia Shire Council issues and
supporting the groups initiatives for
regional improvements. Council to
nominate a Councillor from the report on
Committee membership.

Membership of Outback Queensland
Tourism Association to be retained with
board membership to ensure structured
tourism opportunities are available for
Boulia. Council to nominate a Councillor
at the annual report on Committee
membership.

Council to nominate a Councillor at the

annual report on Committee membership.

Continue to support WORK camp opportunities for Boulia

RUS-Town  Work Camp activities completed
are in line with needs of the

community

Housing - that councils policies and plans support the provision of sufficient suitable housing to meet demand.

Requests from town folk and school etc
to be sent through to the supervisor of
the work camp for action.

Work Completed

Mayor Rick Britton is the nominated representative for RAPAD with
Deputy Mayor Sam Beauchamp and Councillor Beck Britton as
secondary reps. RAPAD has been instrumental in supporting the
wild dog fence and its implementation of the new Finance Managers
group formed to ensure legislative changes are picked up with peer
support networks in place. Water Alliance achieved savings for
council of over $60,000for the town water tank cleaning and mains
flushing project.

The Community Services Manager, Julie Woodhouse was nominated
and elected as the Western Regions representative on the OQTA
Board. It has been several years since the West had any palpable
representation. Julie attends meetings as required. Councillor Beck
Britton is the Councillor representative.

Councillor Sam Beauchamp is the representative on this committee.

Excellent work completed by the work camp with a dedicated
foreman in charge. Community needs are well taken care of.

Develop a long and short term housing plan for the Shire, planning for future needs of the community

DCEO Maintain affordable, staff,

Housing upgrades and maintenance

community and pensioner housing completed in accordance with the annual

budget.

Encourage the development of water wise gardens

Decrease the overall water
wastage in Boulia and Urandangi

RUS-Town

by the promotion of native plants.

Parks and gardens staff to review any
plantings to ensure they are water wise
and suitable for Boulia climate.

Councils carpenter has a fully scoped work program and is working
through this on a priority basis.

The plantings in areas of our gardens either have been eaten by kangaroos

or are heat affected. Further work to be completed in this area.

Good flower beds noted in main street and ANZAC memorial Gardens

Encourage people where possible to return to Urandangi into existing housing

CEO Increased people returning to
housing available in Urandangi

Actively encourage people to move back
to Urandangi into existing housing

Marmanya housing has now been vacated due to community
requests which now leaves several buildings open to the elements
and not monitored. These buildings are on freehold land and not
council owned.

% Completed

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer What Output How Activity

Health & Welfare - Support the health providers to deliver a wide range of health care, medical services and facilities.

Work Completed % Completed

Lobby the government for the continued provision of health services and the future provision of health services.

CEO Provide support to Boulia Health  Development of the Boulia Consultation
Clinic NWPHC and other health group supported.
care providers

CSM Shelf ready project for the Identify funding sources to further
Development of a fitness / develop Burke River Walkway. Continue
tourism walking circuit in with project as budget allows

conjunction with appropriate staff

CEO Food outlets in the shire maintain Continue the engagement an
high level of compliance with the appropriately qualified. EHO to complete
Food Act. appropriate inspections of food
premises etc and to provide
environmental health advice to council

Meetings have been held with Central West Health to support any
ongoing improvements which can be assisted by the council.

No funding available for this type of project has been identified at
this stage. Cultural heritage clearance will be completed in due
course.

Visit completed in March 2017 with al premises inspected as per
guidelines.

Transport Facilities - Provide parking and other transport facilities to the community.
Continued provision of a functional aerodrome suitable to be utilised by RFDS in Boulia and Urandangi.

CEO Conduct a desk top emergency Exercise completed annually.
exercise to test emergency
response procedures

RUS-Town  Airport runway and specific Regular maintenance schedule is
lighting needs are well maintained completed
and functional.

Exercise was scheduled to occur in May in conjunction with QFES Mt
Isa crews but was completed June 14th,

Regular maintenance runs and inspections have been completed.
Recent inspection by airside services - passed.

Lobby for the provision of more truck rest stops and turnarounds on single lane bitumen roads to Transport and Main roads.

ENG Truck turn arounds on single lane Plan of proposed locations to be
roads to be created where budget developed
allows from developed identified
plan.

Heavy vehicle truck turnaround funding has been approved with
council contributing 50% of the cost of 4 pull off areas. Work has
commenced and will be completed June 2017. Total project cost
$400,000 with a council contribution of $200,000.

Ensure that Boulia and Urandangi Airport meet the needs of the community

DWO Improved economies of scale with Develop Regional Airport Management
the early identification of plan.
scheduled maintenance
requirements for Boulia and
Urandangi airports.

Average Percentage Work Completed for this Triple Bottom Line Group

Regional Airport Management Plan has now been completed and
adopted by council with the plan used to support funding
applications and identify scheduled maintenance work required.

80

50

100

100

100

90

100

97.7%

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed

Economic

Foster a sound economic base to enhance the prosperity of the shire which supports growth.

Infrastructure - Develop, improve and maintain infrastructure to meet the needs of the community.
Develop and maintain infrastructure that is functional and sustainable which is used for community functions and events.

DWO Continue a maintenance regime  Regular program prepared and Programmed maintenance plan is now in place. 100
for Council air-conditioning plant implemented by Dec 2017

Lobby for the continued upgrading of urban footpaths through TIDS funding via the Outback Regional Road Group.

RUS-Town Continue support for WORK Assistance provided with plans for work Excellent work completed by the work camp with projects identified 70
camp facility at Boulia submitted to improve township that benefit the town.

ENGR Prepare 20 year plan to maintain, Footpaths to be upgraded in accordance Increased funding from TIDS budget of $160,000 will be focussed 90
upgrade and build Boulia with budget and 20 yr plan on existing footpaths upgrade with strategic new footpaths to
footpaths system. 'heavy' use areas. Work to be completed June 2017

Mayor Active lobbying within the ORRG  Attendance at ORRG meetings with local New funding for $160K under the TIDS program has been received 100
group to increase funding for projects submitted for consideration. with work being completed under the tender process to be
footpaths under the TIDS program completed by June 2017

Roads - to have road infrastructure that meets community needs.
Continue to lobby the government for the inclusion of day labour, plant and equipment usage within the NDRRA Flood damage policy.

CEO Support the ongoing push for Documentation to be sent as support for This is being taken up by RAPAD and LGAQ on a political level with 100
NDRRA recognition for Day Mayors political campaign on council's success achieved for an event occurring in 2017 due to the impact
Labour for Boulia Shire as a workforce as a competitive option. of Cyclone Debbie. It is a temporary measure with a full revue being
competitive option for road undertaken in the future.

construction.

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

Support the Outback Highway Development Council and the declaration of the Donoghue Highway as a State Road under the Main Roads Act.

Mayor That the Donohue Highway is Issue- that this section of road is pushed Further funding announced ($5m) in Dec 2016 will support the 90
declared a State Road as the last  forward as a potential failure hotspot in push for this road to be included as a State Road in the future.
section of the Outback Highway  the future due to the limited ongoing
which is improved, controlled and capability of a local council to maintain
maintained by a Local the bitumen sealing work.
Government Council.

The Roads Asset Management Plan is being effectively implemented to maintain and improve the safety of the shire road network.

ENGR That the shires road networks are Road register and plans are approved by Monthly reports including Gantt Charts are provided which detail 100
managed effectively with value for the council and regular monthly reports approximate dates and which work crews will be working. Budget
money outcomes achieved. are received by council on work allocation is monitored through finance with tendering process used

performance and achievements. as required.

30/06/2017

30/06/2017



Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed
Implement an appropriate WH&S -Quality Assurance system.
WH&S Staff and managers have a clear  Regular communication with staff 'face Excellent result from the Audit 2016. Further work to complete on 100
understanding of the to face' - work programs and pre-start the Rectification Action Plans. Local Government excellence award
expectations of what working meetings continued. Training and received for reaching 'Bronze' level status. 70.1% pass rate. An
safely in Boulia Shire Council inductions completed. Monitoring and excellent (astounding) result for a small council. Transport and
means. completion of Rectification Action Plans Main Roads Accreditation has now been received. Further audit
are ongoing. resulted in 74% pass rate which accounts to a Silver status.
Continue to lobby for increased funding to continue to seal the Donohue Highway from Outback Highway Funds project
RCM- Donoghue highway sealing Work plans completed and adequate Work plans are in place with all plant and equipment costed and 100
Const project completed as per planned plant and equipment and staff are costed reported on via fortnightly timesheets and compared against budget.
activity and planned. We are half way for the bitumen sealing of the road.
Mayor Increase the funding allocation Representation at IQ-RAP, OHDC, NT Gov Continued support of the IQ-RAP, OHDC and TMR reviews have 100

for road work to be completed on meetings with lobbying at State
the Donohue Highway. Government level.

been completed with further submission to LGAQ to improve road
network has been lodged on the Ministerial agenda for further
funding for the Donohue Highway.

Works Operations: to have a works operation which is competitive with other service providers.
Continually assess performance of the works department through regular performance monitoring and cost analysis

RCM- Donohue Highway and Shire
Const Roads - Value for money
outcomes are achieved by council Ongoing costs and productivity is
in the day to day operations of managed well.
the workforce.

RUS-Town RMPC and Town Roads- Value for Work plans are completed in line with
money outcomes are achieved by budget considerations for road work.

council in the day to day
operations of the workforce.

Ongoing costs and productivity is
managed well.

Works Flood Damage - Value for money Work plans are completed in line with
O/seer outcomes are achieved by council budget considerations for road work.

Ongoing costs and productivity is
managed well.

in the day to day operations of
the workforce.

RUS-Town Town Beautification - Value for

Ongoing costs and productivity is
managed well.

council in the day to day
operations of the workforce.

Work plans are completed in line with
budget considerations for road work.

Work plans are completed in line with
money outcomes are achieved by budget considerations for road work.

Sections totalling 110.9 kim have now been sealed with areas up to 100
Badalia, Herbert Downs, Georgina Crossing approaches,

Glenormiston, Pituri Creek, Kelley's Creek, the emergency landing

strip and The Ridges. Review of processes and timesheet allocation

to job costing has been completed. We are half way there.

Work plans are implemented with work allocated in line with TMR 100
defects list and ongoing regular maintenance.

All flood damage work is being completed within the budget and 100
timeframe schedule. Excellent results have been achieved through

working closely with George Bourne and Associates and the

engagement of a Works Overseer to control and monitor the QLDRA

flood damage program. Further work to be completed to meet

requirements for Quality Assurance and WH&S legislation.

New format of recording work completed enables a closer

monitoring of costs against budget.

Daily work plans have been implemented with planned schedule of 100
works for parks and gardens staff.

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed

Deliver a competitive, efficient and modern plant fleet, to complement Councils operations.

DWO Plant and equipment purchasing  Review plant operations including Meeting in Feb 2017 with Plant committee reviewed the Capital 100
is consistent with councils need purchase and sale. Plant Committee works budget which is in place with tenders to be completed as
and long term asset management meetings to be held at least quarterly required for replacement of plant and equipment. New concrete
plan. with recommendations reported back to truck delivered Dec 2016
Council for consideration on purchasing
and sales.

Ensure our Workforce is trained, developed and supported to competently manage themselves and their work.

RUS-Town Town beautification - Improved All staff training certificates to be At the commencement of the New Year all staff undergo refresher 100
level of staff confidence in reviewed each year in January to ensure training including WH&S, Fire and First Aid. Licences are reviewed at
performing their roles and they are current. New training to be this time. Training has been completed on load restraints in Jan
compliance with regulations. identified in line with current work 2017.

requirements.

Implement Human Resource Strategies to become an employer of choice.

HR Council initiatives directly assist ~ Employee Assistance Program is available Report from the EAP provider advises that several contacts have 100
all employees by delivering through a competent provider within been made confidentially with her and that she was able to assist the
Employee Assistance Program. budget allocation. staff members. Continued provision of this service recommended.

In house visit to be planned Nov 2017

Economic Development - Actively investigate, develop and foster business ventures which create and maintain local employment

Funding sources identified which assists the councils ability to provide future employment

ENGR Preparation of Black spot / TIDS ~ Ongoing funding sources identified and Top Limestone Creek redesign has now been submitted for Black 100
or alternate funding applications applications prepared / submitted / spot funding with submissions to ORRG completed. The job has
successful. been prioritised by the group and will be funded in 17/18 financial

year at this stage.

DWO Increased opportunities for local  All opportunities for funding to increase Multiple projects have been identified and have been successful in 100
people to be employed and local employment are sourced with shovel attracting grant funding to support local employment under various
contractors to be engaged on ready projects ready for potential project funding rounds.
Council projects. funds approved by Council, as they Over $1,030,000 has been received for minor infrastructure projects
become available. to be completed by Nov 2017.
Mayor Increased opportunities for local  Representation to RAPAD and the ORRG meetings are attended quarterly with teleconferences held 100
people to be employed and local  Outback Regional Road Group for fair monthly to ensure we have our needs met while still working as a
contractors to be engaged on allocation of funds from Department of regional group. Main Roads Accreditation is now held to complete
Council projects. Main Roads for council projects. TMR work which guarantees work valued at over $1,000,000 each

year.

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed Report

Date
Promote economically and environmentally sustainable industries within the shire

DWO Prepare a management plan for ~ Plan to be completed and adopted by Greg has commenced work and new plans will be available in Nov 80 30/06/2017

the Min Min Centre and the Council - preliminary work completed in with improved mannequins and refurbishment of equipment.

Boulia Sports & Aquatic Centre. consultation with Greg Tuckwell

(designer)

Tourism Value add to existing tourist Visit caravanning and camping shows Caravanning and Camping show attended in January with new TV 100 30/06/2017
Off attractions within the shire. Eg: with joint partners, the Far West Alliance advertising completed in Dec being viewed on Imparja. A new format

Marine fossil display, Stonehouse and Outback Queensland Tourism including drone footage completed for viewing on Imparja.

and the Min Min Encounter. Association. Promotional activities via

social media, TV advertising developed
and implemented.

Ensure information technology and multi-media configurations can assist with establishment and implementation of tourism/business opportunities
EX-ASSIST  Update Councils Website to Website updated with any changes to Website is current and up to date. Review and refresh of existing 100 30/06/2017
ensure legislative compliance public or legislative documents. website is planned later in the year.

Develop campaigns including advertising to support activities within the shire.

CSM Increased exposure interstate for  Utilise television opportunities when 'off New TV advertising campaign has been completed and has been 100 30/06/2017
the attractions of Boulia Shire. peak' is available to our best advantage. released through Imparja.

Tourism Increased exposure interstate for  Utilise web site and Boulia brochure to New Boulia brochure is now available on councils web site to review 100 30/06/2017

Off the attractions of Boulia Shire. extend tourism footprint for Boulia. along with self drive tours. 15 second snippets are also available of

the Min Min Encounter.

Marketing - Promote and market the shire of Boulia to attract rural living, visitors and investors to the shire
Develop tourism strategy for the Boulia Shire and surrounding region
CSM Increase visitor numbers Develop Tourism Strategy in consultation Boulia is being supported by OQTA Tourism Strategy and with the 100 30/06/2017
throughout the shire. with tourism operators joint far West Alliance attendance at Trade Shows. Adelaide Feb and
June 2017 visit completed.

CSM Develop Tourism - develop Consult with tourism operators on draft Self drive tourism loops have been completed and are now located 100 30/06/2017
further self drive loops loops by June 2017 on councils web site.

Support by membership, tourism association and other relevant regional organisations who are promoting Boulia Shire.
CSM Boulia Shire is recognised as part TQ and OQTA initiatives implemented. Community Services Manager is the nominated representative for 100 30/06/2017
of the wider Outback Tourism trail. Retain active membership of the Outback  the OQTA group for western Queensland.
Queensland Tourism Association and
Tourism Queensland.
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Officer What Output How Activity

Work Completed % Completed

Continue with membership of the Outback Highway Development Council

CEO Increased representation for
Boulia to the wider tourism
market as part of the Outback
Highway - Australia's Longest
shortcut.

ongoing actions of the OHDC.

Develop a tourism strategy around marine fossil exhibit
CSM New marine fossil display area
completed to attract tourists.

on marine reptiles.

Average Percentage Work Completed for this Triple Bottom Line Group

Governance

Teleconferences and information
provided to support the ongoing
program. Continue to support the

Display co-ordinated with Queensland
Museum with promotional activity to
name 'nessie'. Budget constraints
adhered to. In house movies for children

Monthly teleconferences held with Outback Highway Development 100
Corporation and are attended by the Mayor and CEO. Good result

with a potential $100,000,000 being allocated to the Outback Way

project from the Federal Government.

New fossil is now displayed at the Museum with assistance from the 100
Queensland Museum. New video system installed Feb 2017. The

removal of old air cons, cleaning of walls and touch up painting to

improve the presentation has been completed. Official opening was

6th April 2017 with local school girl choosing the name ‘Percy’.

98.9%

Effectively and efficiently manage Council legislative responsibilities

Financial Management - Maintain accurate, compliant financial management and reporting systems
Ensure compliance with all legislation and accounting standards as required, implementing best practice financial reporting systems

FM All legislative requirements are

met with all funding bodies With Nil negative comments

CEO Quarterly reporting on the

required by legislation timeframe.

FM Council's financial progress
towards the goals of the

a quarterly basis
senior staff on variations if any.

Returns to be submitted as they are due.

Timely reporting in a suitable format is
Operational Plan is completed as  received by Council within the required

Quarterly budget review is completed and
presented to Council with any changes
Operational Plan are available on to the original budget authorised by
Council resolution with explanations by

All requirements for the provision of information to funding bodies 100
and auditors has been completed on time or ahead of time.

Quarterly reports completed and presented to council and available 100
to the general public.

Third quarterly review was due(Dec to Mar)and was presented to 100
Council in Apr 2017. A new format provides council with in depth

information on any item within the budget. Vast improvement in the

quality and accuracy of budget information now available ' on tap'.

Ensure council resources are sufficiently advanced to provide confidence in technology

SAO Council information technology

of the workforce.

Information technology equipment and
and equipment meets the needs resources to be reviewed in line with
Asset Management plans and replaced as
required within budget allocation.

Budget allocation sufficient to meet council demands into the 90
future. New research into other business systems will take place in

2017. Teams of council representatives from part of the BESPOC

group to review council needs into the future and have relevant

input into the new system. BESPOC is a business review committee

which is part of the RAPAD group of councils.

New business system proceeded - IT Vision. Implementation Sep 2018

Report
Date

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017
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Officer What Output How Activity Work Completed % Completed Report
Date
Development and implementation of long term financial strategy and asset management planning.
FM Improved information available to Long Term Financial Plan to be developed Long term financial plan has been developed and provided to QTC 100 30/06/2017
staff and Councillors when to a stage where it gives Council a good for review and comment. Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC)
making financial decisions which  indication of the impact of financial has developed a Project Decision Framework which will be used on
impact the council over the long  decisions made by them on future all council decisions made for capital works over $100,000 to
term. budgets. Scenarios available for ensure future viability of the asset and sound defensible decision
comparison making by the councillors.
Council Administration and Customer Service - Ensure council resources are utilised in a responsible manner.
Develop a work environment that encourages open communication, personal development, high levels of staff morale and flexibility
CEO Undertake Staff Training, Prepare Positions descriptions to be reviewed by The Modern Award has been finalised (1/3/2017). EBA can now 100 30/06/2017
a staff training plan for all staff all staff with the upcoming Modern commence.
award. Workshops for both staff and managers will occur august
2017. Training is undertaken as needed by various areas with
comprehensive training undertaken each January for outside
workers.
DWO Staff feedback on achieving the Performance reviews are conducted on All council staff are to be involved with their performance review 100 30/06/2017
goals of the organisation linked the anniversary of the employee by the during the anniversary of the commencement date with council.
to performance in the workplace. responsible manager. These reviews are not the sole method of feedback to the employee.
Provide a range of administrative, customer services and facilities for the continued operation of council and good governance of the Shire.
EX-ASSIST  Monitor and source information  List of relevant Policies to be reviewed by Policy review list has been completed and reviews actioned. New 100 30/06/2017
for senior staff on the each department to be notified to each Fraud Control Plan and Fraud Policy has been introduced as part of
development Council’s department head and monitored for the internal audit recommendation.
operational policies completion.
Review the Organisational Chart annually to ensure staffing are sufficient to handle workloads
CEO Continue to operate an efficient ~ Review of Organisational Chart to be Review of Organisation Chart has been completed and adopted by 100 30/06/2017
Council operation with staffing completed Annually to ensure staffing council in Feb as Deputy CEO left with a reallocation of reporting
scheduled to meet the needs of  levels and reporting lines are logical and areas as a new position of Director of Works and Operations will
the Council. effective. handle all technical and operational functions and the CEO will take
on the reporting functions of Admin/Finance/Community Services.
Maintain and resource quality administrative practices to ensure Best Practice administration and operations.
FM Confidence in councils ability to Recommendations from audit reviews are  External audit recommendations are actioned and monitored for 100 30/06/2017

meet the regulatory requirements actioned and reported to Council.
of local government

Workplace Health & Safety - Comply with Workplace Health and Safety Standards to provide safe public and working environments.

Implement WH&S procedures and promote healthy and safe work areas
RLPO Conduct testing and tagging on all Annual program completed
council equipment

improvement which are reported via council agenda items.
Management responses to audit recommendations are actioned and
updates provided to the Audit Committee.

Testing and tagging of all office equipment has now been completed 100 30/06/2017

with equipment replaced as required.
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Elected Representatives - To represent and collectively make decisions to benefit the entire community.
Councillors deliver responsible Leadership with informed and transparent decision making.

Mayor Confidence in the process of Active participation in the Ordinary Councillors advise conflicts of interest before each council meeting
Local Government in the daily Council meetings with adherence to and do not participate as per guidelines.
decision making process of conflicts of interest declarations etc.
council.

CEO Information on Council decision Unconfirmed Council minutes available Unconfirmed council meeting minutes are available to the public
making is available to the general on the Council website within two days within the timeframe with a brief of the meeting being made available
public. of the council meeting. in the councils newsletter each month.(Channel Country Chatter)

Human Resources - to have a workforce which has competitive advantage.
Develop multi-skilling amongst Council’'s workforce
CEO Provide opportunities for staff to  Areas identified within council where Several staff have been trained in various areas of council along with
be multi- skilled multi-skilling opportunities are practical. an increasing number of casual staff completing extra training.

Allocate a necessary training budget for the development of Councils workforce
HR Implement comprehensive Staff are inducted prior to commencing All employees are inducted into the council and sign relevant paper
Employee induction program work in their role. work including a confidentiality clause.

Implement appropriate staff attraction and retention policies.

CEO Implement the Modern Award Modern award implement as released New Award is now in place with LGAQ commencing workshops
with the consultation of the with EBA successfully agreed upon. shortly. Council staff have identified workgroups and commenced
Consultative Committee in the reviewing the existing EBA.

preparation of the new Enterprise
Bargaining Agreement (EBA)

Local Laws - Implement relevant Local Laws and Council policies to ensure quality of life, peace and enjoyment for all

Implement effective Animal control strategies to minimize the impact of animal nuisances on the community

RLPO Conduct an annual inspection Monitoring, impounding and control of Regular impounding of domestic and non-domestic animals is now
program for compliance with animals in town commonplace which will lead to a reduction in strays. Number of
Animal Local Laws animals impounded/ destroyed or impounded/collected by owner:

RLPO Implement wild dog trapping / As per Budget allocation 1080 baiting has been completed with landholders who have
baiting program requested this.

100

100

100

100

90

100

100

Maintain appropriate Policies and Local laws for the control of nuisances and the quiet enjoyment of all residents and land holders.

RLPO Upgrade pound facilities to be in  Cover and water facilities to be within Small improvements made but no major purpose built
line with requirements of Animal standards accommodation has been progressed. Pound to be installed yet.
Management (Cats and Dogs) Act
2008

Average Percentage Work Completed for this Triple Bottom Line Group

100

94.6%

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017

30/06/2017



LIST OF REGISTERS
kept by Boulia Shire Council

In accordance with section 190 (f) of the Local Government Regulation 2012,
the following registers are listed.:-

REGISTER

ACT /REGULATION

PURPOSE

Personal Interest of
Councillors

Local Government
Regulation 2012 s.289

To record certain financial and other
personal interests of Councillors

Personal Interests of
Councillors’ Related Persons

Local Government
Regulation 2012 s.289

To record certain financial and other
personal interests of specified persons
related to Councillors

Register of Delegations by
Council

Local Government Act 2009 s. 257

To record all powers delegated by Council

Register of Delegations by
Chief Executive Officer

Local Government Act 2009 s. 259

To recordall delegations made by CEO

Register of Local Laws

Local Government Act 2009 s.31
and Local Government
Regulation 2012 s.14

To record all Local Laws

Register of Roads Local Government Act 2009 s.74 Toshowdetailsof roadsin the Shire available
toany person
Register of Land Record Local Government To record details of every parcel of rateable

Regulation 2012 [s.154 (2)]

landin the Shire

Register of cost-recovery Fees

Local Government Act 2009 s.98

Torecordthe cost-recovery fees made
under a local law or resolution

Register of business
activities towhich the
competitive neutrality

principles apply

Local Government
Regulation 2012 s.56

To recordthe business activities to which
the competitive neutrality principles apply

Register of non-
current physical
assets

Local Government
Regulation 2012 s.180

Register of non-current physical assets
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SUMMARY of all CONCESSIONS for
RATES and CHARGES GRANTED by COUNCIL s 190(g)

Pensioner Rebate

Ratepayers who reside in their own premisesin Boulia or Urandangi receive a full rebate on their general rates
and a 30% subsidy on service charges (excluding fire levy) up to a maximum of $120.00. This subsidy is in addition to
the 20% subsidy offered by the State Government (Up to a maximum of $180.00).

Other Remissions
Other remission requests, or rate deferral requests, are assessed on a case-by-case basis. In consideringthe
application of concessions, Council is guided bythe principles of:

Equity - By having regard to different levels of capacity to pay within the local community;

Consistency-Thesameconsistenttreatment for ratepayers receiving concessional rating;

Capacity to pay - In determining appropriate arrangements for different groups within the community;

Transparency - By making clear the requirements necessary to receive concessions.

Discounts

To encourage prompt payment and to ensure equity, Council offered to all ratepayers, a 10% discount on the ‘Rates
Notice’ (excluding interest charges and fire levy), if all current and outstanding rates and charges were paid within at
least 30 days after the issue of the rates notice.

Afurther concession was extended to all ratepayers due to the drought. This resulted in the extension of the discount
period up until the date that the rate period ended. No interest was charged during the period if there were no
outstanding rates from previous periods.

Internal Audit
Boulia Shire Council appointed the LGAQ as internal auditorsin June 2015. They have undertaken three visits to
Council since their appointment.

Council has now appointed an Audit Committee which consists of two Councillors and anexternal party in accordance
with the Local Government Act.

Equal Opportunity in Employment Plan

Boulia Shire Council adheres to Equal Employment Opportunity in
all human resources practices through up to date policies and
procedures. For example such practices as:

- Employing the best person for the position,

- Praise and promote employees on the basis of merit, Corporate Services Manager, Kevin McFarlane
and the potential of the employee to handle greater responsibility retired, and Kaylene Sloman (former Senior
and their willingness to do so, and Finance Officer, Boulia Shire Council) was

appointed to the restructured position

- Maintain a workplace free of harassment and victimisation. (Finance Manager) in August 2016,

Shareholder delegates for corporate entities
Boulia Shire Council did not have any corporate entities in place at 30 June 2017.

Investigation notices given under Local Government Regulation section 49 of
the business activities regulation for competitive neutrality complaints
There were no investigation notices given under section 49 during the yearended 30 June 2017.
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Local government decisions on referees recommendations on any complaints

under section 145(3) of the business activities regulation
There were no decisions on referee’s recommendations during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Local Government decisions on the Queensland Competition Authority’s

recommendations under section 158(5) of the Business Activities Regulation
There were no decisions by the Queensland Competition Authority during the yearended 30 June 2017.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS TO FUNDING BODIES 2016-2017

PROJECT PROGRAM FUNDING BODY AMOUNT
Local Government Grants and
Stonehouse Museum complex-disabled access Subsidies Program (LGGSP) Dept Infrastructure Local Govt Planning $29,145
Community Benefit Fund (CBF)
Travelling irrigator Department of Justice $4,500
Department of Infrastructure and Regional
Wills River Bridge and Double Creek , Selwyn Rd Boulia - Bridges Renewal programme Development
Georgina River bridge, Donohue Hwy, Boulia $167,500
Community Infrastructure Department of Infrastructure and Regional
Racecourse Community Kitchen Upgrade Development $6,410
Four Heavy Vehicle Safety and Productivity Programme -
Coorabulka Rd, Donohue Hwy, Selwyn Rd, Urandangi Truck Department of Infrastructure and Regional
Stop/De-coupling bay Heavy Vehicle Safety Program Development $370,930
Work's For Queensland Program - Stonehouse Walls, pool
refurbishment, Depot Office, Robinson Park upgrade, Water
Splash Park, Min Min Centre, Urandangi ablution complex, Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and
Sports oval 'accessible' toilet. Works 4 Queensland Planning $1,030,000
Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and
December 2016 summer preparedness Get Ready Queensland Initiative Planning $4,880
Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and
Upper Limestone Creek Flood Warning Signs Project Planning $189,900
Shire Hall Renewal, /Camel Race Track, Jockeys change room Drought Communities Program Australian Federal Government $927,100
Qld Government - Department of Education and
First Start Program-admin trainee Skilling Queenslanders for Work Training $12,500
Queensland Day Sponsorship
Qld Week @ Stonehouse Program Premiers Department Queensland $2,500
Community Projects Regional Arts Development Fund | Arts Queensland $10,979
Department of Child Safety and
Community Drought Support 2017 Disability Services Queensland Government $82,500
All Terrain Vehicle SES SES Non-Recurrent funding round | Queensland Fire and Emergency Services $15,000
Ozobot Robotics and Coding Grant State Library of Queensland S800
Total | $2,854,644

During this financial period Council assisted with the au spicing of $116,772.71 of funding for small community groups who do not have the financial

capacity to manage funding themselves.







COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT

The Community Financial Report aims to simplify Council’s financial statements through a visual and
plain English written explanation of our results for the financial year 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017.

This Community Financial Report consists of three (3) key statements:-
-Statement of Comprehensive Income

-Statement of Financial Position
-Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Comprehensive Income
The Statement of Comprehensive Income reflects how we take the money we receive in our day to
day operations, and spend it to provide the level of services the community expects from our

Council.

This year Council’s:-
total revenue ..............cc.oo...... $22.6 million
total expenses............ccuveee.nn. $17.7 million
returning an

operating surplus of ............... $4.9 million.

REVENUE - Where did Council’s funds come from?

Income Breakdown - S$'000s
1.72% 1.15%

Rates, Levies & Charges $1,241

5.50% R

m Fees & Charges $395

20.10%

m Rental Income $260

Interest Received $269

= Sales Revenue $5,292

= Other Income $9

® Operating Grants, Subsidies &

0.04% Contributions $10,612

Capital Grants, Subsidies &
Contributions $4,539




Council’s reported Total Income of $22.6 million
during the 2016/17 financial year is broken up
into two areas:

Operating Income........... $18.1m

Capitalincome ... $ 4.5m

The more significant contributors to Council’s revenue stream include:

Rates, Levies and Charges.........cccocovceevcenrecnnne. S1.2m
SalES REVENUE ... S5.3m
Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions$S10.6m
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions...$4.5m

Boulia Racecourse Reserve




EXPENDITURE — Where does the money go?

Council incurs both operating and capital expenditure through providing a wide range of services to
the community. Expenditure is regularly monitored to ensure funds are used efficiently.

Operating expenditure is made up of:-

Employee benefits......c.ccveveeeeeiieececeeeeee e, S 3.2m
Materials and Services......cc.ccveerierieeieeneeneenne $11.2m
FINANCE COSES .uveuvenienieiieiieiiriesie e $ 0.07m
DEPreCiation ..c.eccueeeeeeveeeeeeeree e et S 3.1m

Employee benefits consists of wages and other entitlements such as superannuation and annual
leave which is paid to our staff members.

Materials and Services consists of goods Council purchases to use in day to day operations.
Wherever possible, Council uses local suppliers and contractors so that the money flows back into our

community.

Finance costs consist predominantly of provisions for bad debts.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Statement of Financial Position measures what we own (our assets), what we owe (our liabilities) and
our net worth (total community equity) at the end of the financial year.

TOtal ASSETS ..coooeiieeeeee e $168.2m
Total Liabilities ........ccvvvveeeiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee S 2.4m
Total Community Equity ...........cccoeveeiveennnns $165.7m

ASSETS - what the community owns

Property, plant and equipment accounts for 89.9% of Council’s assets. This includes the road infrastructure,
buildings and structures, plant and vehicles, water, sewerage and aerodrome assets. This represents a
significant investment of community funds and requires careful management to ensure that the levels of
service provided by these assets is maintained.

The major components of our assets include:

Road NetWOrK......ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $115.9m
Buildings and structures ..........cccceeeeveennee. S 18.5m
Plant and vehicles .......ueveeveviieeeeeeeeeean. S 3.5m
Cash and investments.....cccoeeevvveeeeivineenenn. S 14.9m
Trade and other receivables.......ccccee......... S 19m
Water Infrastructure......cceevvveeeveeeeiieeieeeees S 5.4m

Sewerage Infrastructure ........ccccceevveeeveennns S 1.9m




LIABILITIES — what the community owes

The components of our liabilities are:

Borrowing ..................... $1.2m
Trade and other payables$0.9m
Provisions..................... $0.3m

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The statement of cash flows shows Council’s cash received and spent during the year. It shows our ability to
pay our bills and put aside some funds for the future. Our final cash balance as at 30 June 2017 was $14.9m
which is an increase of $3.2m from the previous year.

This report covers three specific areas: Financing, Investing and Operating activities.

Financing activities are cash received if Council takes out new loans or cash paid as repayments against
loans;

Investing activities include money Council receives and spends when we buy or
sell property, plant and equipment (Capital purchases);

Operating activities include all other areas such as rates, fees and charges, interest,
grants, employee costs, materials and services, interest and administration.

Listed below is a table showing the results of the Cash Flow Statement for the past six years.

2015/16 | 2014/15 | 2013/14 | 2012/13 | 2011/12
CASH FLOW 2016/17 | $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000
Opening Cash Balance 11,779 13,378 12,632 9,865 8,678 5,229
Net Cash Flow from
Operating Activities 3,638 656 3,763 4,122 2,123 5,630
Net cash Flow from Investing
Activities (Capital Purchases) | (411) (2,207) (4,320) (1,355) (935) (2,204)
Net Cash Flows from
Financing Activities (Loans) (45) (49) 1,303 0 0 0
Closing Cash Balance 14,961 11,779 13,378 12,632 9,865 8,655




KEY SUSTAINABILITY RATIOS

The Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience has developed a range of
sustainability indicators to assist in assessing the sustainability of Councils. A Queensland Council is considered
sustainable if its infrastructure and financial capital is able to be maintained over the long term.

Section 179 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires that the measures of sustainability for the
financial year be included in the Community Financial Report. The table below summarises the indicators and
compares Council’s actual results with the targets.

by total operating
revenue

liabilities of Council can be
repaid from operating
revenue

MEASURE RESULT
OF FINANCIAL AT TARGET
SUSTAINABILITY HOW IT IS CALCULATED EXPLANATION TARGET | 30.06.17 MET
Operating Net result divided by Measures the extent to Between 2.85% Yes
. total operating revenue | which Council’s revenue 0% & 10%
surplus ratio . .
raised covers operational
expenses. If there is a
surplus, this is then
available for funding capital
expenditure
Asset Capital expenditure on This ratio reflects the extent | Greater 10.82% No
s . the replacement of to which infrastructure than 90%
sustainability ratio .
assets (renewals) assets managed by Council
divided by depreciation | are replaced as they reach
expense the end of their useful life
Net financial Total liabilities less Measures the extent to Less -80.5% Yes
liabilities ratio current assets divided which the net financial than 60%

Council has achieved two (2) of the three (3) key targets for the financial year; but must focus on fine-tuning
our management of asset replacement so that the asset sustainability ratio meets its target.

OVERALL FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Cash balance as at 30 June 2017 was

S 14,961,044

Council has accounts set aside for future capital expenditure of ...$ 2,328,551

Total community equity as at 30 June 2017 was

THE FUTURE

is in a sound financial position.

Council has further consolidated its financial position,
and

$165,777,322
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Boulia Shire Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Council
2017 2016
Note $ $
Income
Revenue
Recurrent Revenue
Rates, levies and charges 3(a) 1.241,215 1,202,071
Fees and charges 394,570 405,050
Rental income 260,450 319,152
Interest received 269,529 414,343
Sales revenue 3(b) 5,291,981 3,387,486
Other income 9,938 37,307
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(a) 10,611,740 8,557,008

18,079,423 14,322,417

Capital Revenue

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(0) 439,433 3,968,377
Total Revenue 22,618,856 18,290,794
Total Income 22,618,856 18,290,794
Expenses
Recurrent Expenses
Employee benefits 6 (3,200,516) (3,249,003)
Materials and services 7 (11,224,942) (9,544,540)
Finance costs (77,188) (75,844)
Depreciation 8 (3,061,203) (3,289,272)
(17,563,849) (16,158,659)
Capital Expenses 5 (110,369) (32,986)
Total Expenses (17.674,218) (16,191,645)
NET RESULT 4,944,638 2,099,149

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result

Increase / (decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 16 - 1,172,997
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - 1,172,997
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 4,944,638 3,272,146

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and
Significant Accounting Policies.
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Boulia Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2017
Council
2017 2016
Note $ $
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 14,961,044 11,779,119
Receivables 10 1,649,839 1,566,023
Inventories 300,541 275,742
Total Current Assets 16,911,424 13,620,884
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 151,305,069 149,525,852
Total Non-Current Assets 151,305,069 149,525,852
Total Assets 168,216,493 163,146,736
Current Liabilities
Payables 13 947,630 801,577
Borrowings 14 48,519 46,887
Provisions 15 202,994 208,482
Total Current Liabilities 1,199,143 1,056,946
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 14 1,160,946 1,207,138
Provisions 15 79,082 49,965
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,240,028 1,257,103
Total Liabilities 2,439,171 2,314,049
Net Community Assets 165,777,322 160,832,686
Community Equity
Asset Revaluations Surplus 16 85,512,316 85,512,316
Retained Surplus 80,265,006 75,320,370
Total Community Equity 165,777,322 160,832,686

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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Boulia Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Council

Balance as at 1 July 2018

Mt result

Other comprahansiva income for the year
Imcrease in Asset Revaluation Surplus

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance as at 30 June 2017

Balance as at 1 July 2016

Met result

Other comprahansive Income for the year
Increass in Asset Revaluation Surplus

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance as at 30 June 2016

Note

Asset

revaluation “;‘“'““d .
surplus urplus Tota
16
3 5 5§
85512 316 75,320,370 160,832 BA5
- 4,944 628 4 944 BB
- 4,944 638 4,944 IR
85,512,316 30,265 006 165,777 322
84,338,319 73,231,222 157,560 542
= 2,050 145 2,058 1459
1,172,997 - 1472597
1,172 947 2,080,145 3272146
02,512,316 70,320,370 160,832,665

The above stafemant show'd be read in conjunctian with the accompanying noles and Slgaificant Accomling Polickes.
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Boulia Shire Council

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Couneil
Note 2017 2016
$ ¥

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipls from customers 5,853,888 4 220 044
Payments 1o suppliers and employess {14, 280,678) (12,932 818)

(7,426,668 (8,709 573)
Interest received 269,529 414,343
Rantal income 260,450 319,152
Mon capital grants and contributions 10,611,740 8,557 008
Bormowing costs (77,188) 75,844
Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Operating Activities 20 3,637 044 556,474
Cash Flows from Invasting Activities
Payments for proparty, plant and equipment [5,171,167) {5,655 633)
Procaeds from sale of property plant and equipment 220,375 545,264
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4,539,433 3,906,412
Net Cash Inflow {outflow) from Investing Activities {411,358 (2,206,855)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings - -
Repayment of borowings (44,560) (49,038}
Net Cash Inflow (outflow) from Financing Activities (44 580) (49,038}
Mot Change in Cash and Cash Equivalent Held 3181925 {1,589 421)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 1,779,119 13,378,540
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Financial Year ] 14,961,044 11,779,114

The above statermen! should ba read in conjunciion with the accompanyng notes and Significant Accounting
Policies.
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1.A

1.8

1.C

1.0

Boulia Shire Council
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

These general purpose financial statemeanis are for the period 1 July 2016 1o 30 June 2017 and have bean prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012.
Consaguantly, these financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with all Auslralian Accounting Standards,
Australian Accounting Interpretations and other autharitative proncuncements issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board.

Councll is a nat-for-profit @ntity and the Australan Accounting Standards include reguirements for not-for profif entities
which are inconsistent with International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS). Thearaifora in some instances these
financial statements de not comply with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsstting of revaluation gains and losses within a
class of assats and tha timing of recognition of non-reciproecal grant revenue.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historcal cost corvantion except for tne following financial
assels and lablliies which are measured at falr vabue:-

it Land and improvements
i} Building & structures

i1y Road infrastructune

iv) Water infrastructure

v) Sewerage infrastructure
vi) Asrodrome infrastnucture

Recurrent [ Capital Classification
Rewvenue and expenditure are presented as "recurrant” or “capial® in the Statarment of Comprehensive Income on the
fesllevving Basis:

Capital revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied 1o specific projects for the replacemant or upgrade
of axisting non-current assets andlor invesiments in new assets. |t also includes non-cash contributions which are usually
infrastructure assets received from developers,

The following transactions are classified as either “capital income” or “capital expense” depending on whether they result in
accounting gains or losses:

i) Disposal of non-current assets
i} Revaluations of property plant and equipmant.

Al other revenue and expenses have been classified as "recurment”

Constitution
The Boulia Shire Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Govermment Act 2009 and iz domiclled in Ausiralia

Currency
The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentafion currency.

Rounding and Comparatives
The financial statermnents have been rounded to the nearest 51.

Comparative iInformation has been restated where necessary to be censistent with disclosures in the current reporing
pariod.
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1.E

1.F

1.G

1H

1.

Boulia Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Date of Authorisation

The Financlal Staternents were authorised for issue on the dale they were submilted to the Auditor-Genaral for final
signature. This is the date the management cartificate is signed,

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

This year Council has applied AASE 124 Related Pary Disclosures for the fist time, &5 a result Council has disclosed
rmofe information about related parties and transactions with those refated parties. This information is presented in note

22
Some Australian Accounting Standards and Intespretations have been issued but are not yet efieclive. Those standards

have not been applied in these financial statements. Council will implerment them when they are sfaciive. The standards
that are expected to have a material impact vpon council's future financial statements are:

Date council wil
Standard and impact apply the
standard

AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB 2016-8
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Prafit Entities

AASE 15 will replace AASE 118 Revenue, AASE 111 Construction Contracts and a nurmber of
Interpratations. AMSE 2016-8 provides Australian requiremanis and guidance for not-for-profit entities
in applying AASE O and AASE 15, and AASE 1058 will replace AASE 1004 Contributions. Together 1-Jul-19
they conlain a comprehensive and robust framework for the recognition, measurement and disclosurs
of income including revenue from contracts with customers,

Council is still reviewing the way that income is measured and recegnised to identify whether the re will
be any material impact ariging from these standards.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of Council’s accounting policies, managament is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about carrying values of assets and lEabilities that are net readily apparent frem olher sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions ars based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and ongoing assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recagnisad in the pariod in which the estimate is revised and in future
periods as relevant

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are cutlined in the follawing financial
statemant nobes:

aluation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - Mota 11

Impaitment of propedy, plant and eguipment - Note 1.H

Provisions - Mate 15

Contingant liabilites - Nate 18,

Impairmeant of Non-Current Assets
Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assats is assesead for indicators of impalrment annually.
Taxation

Income of local autharities and public authonties is exempt fram Commonwealth Taxation except for Fringe Banefits Tax
and Goods and Services Tax (GST). The net amount of GST recoverable fram the ATO or payable fo the ATO is shown
as an asset or labilily respectively.
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Boulia Shire Council
Motes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

2. Analysis of Results by Function

2ia} Components of Council Functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows

Corporate Support

Secure revenue from governmants and ratepayers to finance the general activities of Council

Provide suppaont functons for the Mayer and Councillors, Coundil and committes meetings and statutory
requiraments intluding disaster management, civic receptions and regional services

Provide Council and corporate management of the organisation includirg:-

Financial and administrative sarvices

Encourage and monitor the planning and construction of the building emviranment

Information technalogy

Human rescurces and payrall

Plan and design Council's infrastructure and provide general engineering and operational support
Pravision of tourism attracticns and museums and assist with the prometion and development of the kecal tourism
industry

Pravide leadership and key industry contacts for the diversification and growth of local industry

Procure and service Coundcil's mobile fleat

Environmental and Matural Resources

Ensure a high level of envicanmental health is maintained for all residents and visitors. Profect the natural
environment and undariake projects to enhance economic and enviranmendal relurn from use of reserves
Frotect and enhance the envirenmental and natural resources within the Shire. This includes:-

Proparty past managemant

Stock route management

Animal contral

Envirenmental licenses and approvals

Community and Lifestyle Services

Enhance community development and equity throwgh targeted assigtance and development activities
Provide activities and services 1o Improve the lifestyle of residents including:-

Providing accessible and quality library materials to residents

Praviding enteralnment venues for all residents

Community cenires and halls

Froviding community housing for both staff and non-staff members of the Shire

Community sarvices

Prowision of clean and appropriate recreational & sporiing facilities and areas and ather public spaces for
community and tourist use

Parks and gardens

Cemeteries

Health and Welfare
Assist with the provision of faciliies and activifies fo enhance the health and welfare of residents.  Loboy
gowernment for Improved facilibes.

Water, Sewerage and Garbage

Water Infrastruciure

Supply urban residents and businesses with a clean and reliable water supply

Improve the conservation of water usa by the community

Sewerage Infrastructure

Provide sewerage services to the urban community

Garbage [nfrastructure

Provide urban residents and businesses with an efficient refuse collection and disposal service

Roads
Provide, maintain and upgrade roads, streets and drainage fo the highest standard within limis of resources
Undertake road construction and maintenance works for third parties
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Boulia Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
Faor the year ended 30 June 2017
Council
21T 2016
Hote $ %

Revenue Analysis

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration recenved or receivable, at the time indicated
below,

Rates, Levies and Charges

Rates are recognised as revenue at the start of the rating period. If a ratepayer pays their rates before the
start of the rating penod, they are recognised as revenue when thay are received.

Ganaral rafes 854,800 931,550
Water 190,619 181,751
Sewerage 103,080 105,604
Garbage charges 05,734 105,154
Tatal rates and utility charge revenue 1,348 233 1,324 088
Less: discounts (106, 8296) 121.412)
Less: pensioner remissions (120) [585)

1,241,215 1,202,071

Sales Revenue
Thi sale of goods is recognised when the customer has taken delvery of the goods. Revenue from services
is recognised when the service is renderad,

Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together
wilh an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. This revenue and the assocated cozls ane
racagnised by refarence to the stage of completion of the contract activily at the reporing date. Whera
conshderation |s recehved for the service In advance it B included in other labilites and is recognised as
revenue in the period when the service is performed. There are no contracts in progress at the year end. The
contract work caried out s net subject lo retentions.

Sale of services
Contract and recoverable works 5,291,981 3,387 488
5,291,981 3,387 486

Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations

All grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the yaar
Inwhich Councll obtaing controf cver them

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revanus is recognised as the varnous parformance
chbligations under the funding agreement are fulfilled, Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants.

Recurrent

General purpose grants 4 606,802 2,860,878

State government and olher subsidies and grants §,104,938 5,596,130
10,611,740 B 567 008

Capital

Capltal Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied 1o specific projects for the replacement
or upgrade of existing non-current assets and ! of investement in new assats.

State government subsides and grants 4 538,433 2,851,353
Commonwealth govermment subsidies and grants - 1,117,024
4,538,433 3,968 377

Conditiens over contributions
Contributions recognised as income during the reporting pericd and which ware oblained on the condition that
they be expended in a manner specfied by the contributor but had not been expended at the reparting date:

Mon-reciprocal grants for expendilure on senvices 421,210 -
421,210 -
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Boulia Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Council
2017 20186
MNote ] 5
Capital Expenses
Galn ! Loss on Disposal of Mon-Current Assets
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 174,843 46,364
Less: Book value of propery, plant and equipment disposed of (285,212) (575,350)

(110,369} (32 4988)
Employee Benefits

Total staff wages and salaries 2541,14% 2457055
Councillors’ remuneralion 311,053 306 874
Annual, sick, long service leave and entitlemeanis 456,322 20415
Suparannuation 19 286,478 304, 745
3,695,002 3/691,090
Other employes related expenses 88,451 117,808
3,783,453 3.808 598
Lass: Capitalised amployas expanses (582,537) (558, 805)
3,200,516 3,248,002

Councillor remunerabion represents salary and other allowances paid o respect of carrying out their duties.

Total councll employeas at the reporting date: 27 2016

Elecied marmbers L 5
Administration staff 16 18
Depot and autdoors staff 25 26
Total full time equivalent employees 46 47

Materials and Services

Administration supplies and consumables 1,018 827 Ba7 409
Audit of annual financial statements by the Auwditor-General of 67542 52 524
Queansland
24,813 33183
Communications and IT 210,508 112,000
Consullants - 8777
Donations paid 7077 56,683
Repairs and maintenance 211,378 328,785
Roads 8,239,741 6,645,895
Other materials and sendices 1,574,858 1,408,158
11,224,542 8 644 540

Depreciation and Amartisation

Depreciation of Non-current Assots

Buildings & structures 535174 1,008 176
Plant & vehiclas 427,708 389,813
Furniture & equipment 60,750 44 550
Road infrastruciure 1,676,945 1,479,059
Water infrastructure 134,336 129,049
Sewerage Infrastructure 45,552 45,725
Aerodrome infrastructune 180,732 102 847
Tatal depreciation i1 3,061,203 3,289 272
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Boulia Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017
Council
2017 2016
Mote 5 §

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 8 cash and chegues reczipted but not banked at the year
end and deposits held al call with financial instituitions.

Cash at bank and an-hand 244 B2 120,297
Deposits at-call 14,716,224 11,658,822
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 14,551,044 11,779,114

Cash and deposils at call are held in the Queensland Treasury Corporation and Commonwealth Bank of
Australia in normal business aceounts.

Cash and deposits at call are held in the Commonwealth Bank of Australia in normal at call and business
chegue accounts. The bank currently has a short term credit rating of AA2 and longer term rating of P-1.

In accordance with the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Gowernment Regulation 2012, a separate trust
bank account and separale accounling recards are maintained for funds beld on behalf of oulside parlies.
Funds held in the trust account include those funds for security deposits lodged and auspicing projects. The
Councll performs only a custodian role in respect of these monies and becavse the monles cannel be used
for Council purposes, they are not congidered revenue nor brought to account in the stalements.

Trust Funds

Trust Funds Held for Outside Parties

Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet to be paid out to or on behalf of those
enbibies

Auspicing 81,278 99,713
Securily deposits 1615 32,151

82 803 123,884
Raecaivables

Receivables are amounts owed to council at year end. They are recognised at the amount due at the time of
sale or service delivery. Settament is raquired within 30 days alfter the invoica is issued.

Dabis are regularly assessed for collectability and allowance is made, where appropriate, for impairment. All
known bad debts were wrillen-off at 30 June 2017, If an amount is recoversd in a subsequent period it is
recognised as revanua.

Current

Rateabls revenue and wiility charges 85,966 199,531
Ciher debtors 1,607 722 1,387 202
Less impairment (97 ,405) {97 405)
GST recoverable - {16,837}
Prepaymeants 53,536 3,481

1,649 839 1,566,023

Interast is charged on autstanding rates at a rate of 11% per annum. Mo interest is charged on other deblors.
There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and ulility charges, fees and other debiors receivable

Movermnant in accumulated impairment losses (other deblors) is as follows:

Opening balance at 1 July 97,405 183,030
Impairment dabis writien off during the year - (85, 625)
Closing Balance at 30 June o7 405 97 405
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Boulia Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

12 Property, Plant and Equipment
(&) Fair Value Measuraments

Plant and equipment with & lotal value of less than 35,000, and Infrasireciure assefs and buildings with & tolal valus of less than $10,000 ane eated a3 an expanse in tha year of
acquilsiion. All cther tems of property, plant and equipmant are capitalised.

Reglecement of 8 major component of an assed, i order bo maintain its service potantial, is treated as the acquisition of 8 new assel. However, mutine operaling mairtenanca,
I'EFI.H' costs and mingr renewals 1o mainkain the operational capacily and useful life of the non-cumen] assel is edpensad &3 Inecured.

Exgpendibure incuired ia accordance with Metural Disaster Rebal end Recovery Arangaments on ioad assets 5 anslysad 1o determine whather the expanditure is capital In nature.
The analysig of the expenditure requires Council engineers to review the natwe and extant of expendilure on 3 given assel. For example, sxpendiiune that peiches a road is
generally mairtenance in nature, whersas a kerb b kerb rebuld is reated as capital. Material axpendiiune that exiends the us2iul e or ranews te sendos polential of e asset is
capitalisad,

Land under the reads and resarve land which Talls undes the Land Acf 1954 or the Land Tifle Acl 1984 12 controlled by the Cueenslamd Governmment pursuant 1o the relevent
legiskation. This land |s nat recogrised in these financizl stataments.
i) Recognised Falr Value Measurements
Council measunes and recognises the tollowing assels at fair value on & recuring basis:
Property, plant and eguipment
- Land and improverment
- Buwildings and alber Slruchures
- Agrodrome infrasiruciune
- Road infrastniciure
« Water mfrastructure
- Gewerage infrastrecture
Cowcl does nod measure any lleilites at tair valuz on a recuring basis

Cowncl has assels and Eabiilies which are nof measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in othar noles,

Councl bormowings Bra measured at amartised cost with inberest recognised in prof or loss when incurmed. The fair valua of borowings disclosad in Mobe 14 is provided oy the
Cusensland Treasury Corporation and represents fthe conliaclual undiscounted cash fiew &1 balance date (Level Z).

Tha carrying amounts of trade recaivablas and trade payatles are szsumed bo aporoximate their fair values dus fo their shom-term nature (Leved 2).
In accordanca with AASE 13 Fair Valme Messuremenls are calegorsad an the Tollowing basis:
= Fair value basad on guoted prices (uradjusted) in aclive markels for identicel aseats or Labdities {Level 1)

- Fair walue based on inputs that are directly o indirectly ohservable for the assel o liabiity (Level 2)

- Fair velue basad on unobservable mputs for the assel and kability (Level 3)
{h) Maasuramants

Frogerty plant and equipment assets are intally recorded al cost. Subsequenily, each class of property, plant and equipment is stated o cosl or fair value less, whare applicable,
any accumulated depresialion and accwnulated mgaimment (085, Cost is determingd as the fair value of the assels given as consderalion plus costs incidantsl % the acguisition,
including freight in. architect's fees and enginearing design faes and al ofher establishment costs. Direct 13bour and matenials and an appropriste proportion of ceerhesds nourred
in e aceuisilion or constructon of assats ane also incuded in heir cost

(e} Depreciation

Assuts are depreciated rom the dale of acquisiton or, in respect of infemally consiructed Bssets, fram the bme an asset is complstad and commissioned ready for usa, at which
fimi ey are reclasslfied from wark in prograss to the agprogriate property, plant and equipment cass. Land is not deprecialed as it kas an unlinied useful Gle. Depreciation on
ather property, plant and equipment assels is caleulaled on 3 stralghtine hasis 5o a5 o wrile-off the fel eoal of revalued smount of each depracieble asset, loss its estimated
ragidual value, progressivaly oy ils estenated usefu i 10 the Council. Management belisve that the siraight-line basls appropriately reflacts tha pattarn of conswumngtion of all
Council assets

Whens assats have separalely Mentifisble companants fhat are subject to regular raplacament. these companerts are assigned usend ives dislingl from the asset io which they
ralate. Any expendiiure that increases the originally assessed capacity or senvice patential of an assel is capitalised and the new depraciatle amount is depraciated over the
ramaining useful life of the asset ko the Councll. Mejar sparas purchased speciically for paticular assats thet ane abova the aseet recogniion threshold ane capitalised and
depreciated on he same basis s the assel to which they refate.

The depreciabie amaunt af improvements to or on leasehold land = slocated progressively ovar the estimated useld lives of the impaovemeants Lo the

Council ar e unexpired peniod of the lease, whichever is the shortar,

Depraciation methods, estimated useful lives ard residual values of property, plant and egquipment assats sre reviewed at the and of sach reporting period ang adjusted wihene
recassany to reflect any changes in the cattern of consumgtion, physacal wear and ear, fechaical o commaersal obsolscence. of managemarnt intentions. The concitan
gmgesamenls performed as part of the annual valualion process for assats measwured at wiitien down curmen replacement coal ane used to estimate the uselul Ives of these
B58ats 81 each raporting date.

(d) Impairment

Pregerty, slant and equipmeant iz assessed for indicabars of impairment annually, If an indcator of possible Impaiment exsls, the Council determines be assels racoverable
amouwn:. Any amount by which the assefs carying amount excaeds the recoverable amount is recorded 85 an impairmant loss.
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Boulia Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

{&) Valuation

Hon-cument physcal assets measured af fair value ane revalued, whese requined, so that the carmgng amount of each class of asset does not meterialy differ from its Fair value at
ihe reparting date. This is achieved by angaging independent, professisnally qualified vatuars to determine the fair value foe sach dass of proparty, plant ard aguipment sasels st
least onoe every 3 years. This process invohes tha valuer physcally sighting a representalive sample of Councl aseets across all assel casses and making Mer own
assasameants of the condfon of the assels af the dale of inspecion,

In the intervaning yaers, Council uses iMemal engingers and assel managers to assass the condition and cost assumptions associated with all nfrastructes assets, e esults of
which are considerad in combnation with an eppropriate cost index foe the regian, Togeiher thesa are used fo form the basis of a managesnent valuation fo infrastruciune asset
clasges in each of the inbarvening yaars, Wilh raspect to tha valuation of the lend and mpravements and buiklings and alucilures assel classes in the inlervening years,
rmanagement engage indepandanl, professionally qualified valuers 1o parform a "deskion”™ valuation. & desklap valuation invokes management prowiding updatad infarmaian ko
the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes in assumplions such as wseful e, residua value end condition raling. The valuer than determines suitable indices which
arg dapplied to each of these eseet casses. Management, in consullalion with sonsulting enginaers, also asses indices on a0 annal basis Tor malerial mavemnants in relevant
indicag,

An snalysis parformed by management has indicaled thal, oo averags, the vadance betwean an incexed asset value and the valuation oy an independant valer when peformed
is not sgnificart and the indices used by Council are scund. Further details in retalion to valuess, the medhods of valuation and Ihe key assumplions used in waluing each diferant
assel chass are disclosed below,

Any revaiuation Incremant arising on the revaluaion of an assel & credited (o the approprate class of the assat revaluation surplus, excapt to the exient it revarsas a revaluation
daczement for the class praviously recognised as an expense. A decrease in (he carrying amount on revaluaion is charged as an expense 1o (he extent it excaeds the talance, if
any, in the revalisation surplus of that asset class.

O revaluation, accumuiatad depreciation |8 restated propariionetely with the change in Fe carmdng amount of the assel and any change in e aslimale of remamning uaeful life,
Saparalely idenlified components of assats are measured on the same basis as he assels to which they relate

The frlowing 1able categorises fair value measurements as eithar Level 2 or Lewal 3 in accordance with AASE 13, Gouncil goes not have any asets or liabiites measured at fair
value which meat tha critara for categonzation &s Lavel 1.

Tha fair values of the assets are delermined using valuation techriques which masimise {he use of chservable dala, where il is available, and minimige the use of entity spaciic
estimatas, If all signiicant inpuls reguired 1o fair value an essel are cbsenvable, the essel Is Inciudead in Level 2. I one or more of the significant inguls is not besad on obsarvable
market data, the asasl ia induded in Level 3. Thas is the case for Council infrasiructure assats, which are of a specealist natura for which fhare & no active market for similar or
idenbical assets. These essels are valued using a combination of observable and unobsensabie inpubs,

The table presents the Councils assets and liabdities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2017,

Counecil
Ab 30 Jung 2017 Mote Level 22047 |Level 2 2016 | Level 3 2017 |  Level 3 2018
Toltal
2017 Total 2016
|Observable inpuls) {Unobservable inpuis)
5 [ 5 | s $ 5
Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Land and impravement 11 795326 E30500 . . 7BB326 830,500
Bulildiryges ard struchunes 11 LAB0O00  148D0A0 16421 632 16,737 343 17,801 632 18,217,343
Rea infrastructune 11 . - 115 657,447 114,877,871 115,857 447 114,877,671
Wates infrastruciure 11 - - B 416,822 5116475 8416 022 116,475
Sewerape Infrastuciune 11 . - 1,600,578 1,720 503 1,400 578 1,720 563
Aerodrome infrastructura 11 - . 4434 542 4,501,841 4,434 542 4,501,544
ZITHIZE ZAI0500 444031118 43061698 146310447 145,172,118

There were no ransfers behvieen levels during the year,
Coundl's policy i to recognise ransfers in and out of the fair value higrarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
(i} Valuation Techniques Used to Derlve Falr Values for Level 2 and Level 3 Valuations

Council adopled AA5B13 Falr Valwe MWessurament for the frst ime in the 201314 financial year and has reviewed each valuation to ensure complance with the requiremants of
e new siandard. There have baen no changes in valuation tachriques as a result of his reviee,

Specific Valuation Technigues Used to Value Council Assets Comprisa:
Land {Level 2}

Land Fair Wishies were detesrnined by independant valuer, APY Valuers and Asset Managersent efective 30 June 2016 Level 2 valuation inpul wera used to valua land in
frenold bie as well as land used far special purposas which is resticied in use under curment 2oning roles. Sales prices of eomparable lBnd Sies it oo progimity ane adjusted
for diffenances in key atirbutes such as property size. The most sgnificant inpuis nta thes valuation approach are price par square metns.

Buildings [Level 2 and 3)

The Tair value of buiklings were also detesrnined by independent visluer, APV Waluers and Assel Managemen| effective 30 Jure 2016, Wheare b 5 a market for Council building
@ssels, I8ir value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable propertes after adjusting for diflerences in key alfributes such as property size. The masi significant inputs
inlp this velualion approach were price per sguane metre.

Whara Council bulldings are of 8 specislst neture and there |8 no sotive market for the assets, fair valve has bean detarmined on the basis of replecemant with 8 new esset
hanving similar service patential including allewances for prefiminanies and professional fees. The gross curent values have bean derived from referanca ko marked data for recent
projects and costng guides issued by Ihe Auslraian Ingliule of Quantity Suréseyors, Rawlinson's (Australian Construction Handbook). Where a depth in market can be identified,
| net current va'ue of & bulding asset (s e differance betwesn the marget valee of he 355 a5 a whele (including 1end) and tha market value of the land companent. Whare
eng i no deplh of market, the net curent value of a building asset is the gross current value less accumulabd depreciation to reflect fe consumed or expired service poteniial

of the seget.
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In disterrnining the beval of accumulsted degreciation the sase! has baen dsaggregaled into significent companents which axhibit usefil ives Alowance has been made for the
typical asset lite cycle and renewal freaiments of aach component, residual value 81 the tima the asset is considered fo be no langer available for use and tha condfian of he
aasat Condition was assessed laking inlo ascount bath physical characlerisfics as wall as holsfic faclors such as funciionality, capabilyy, utilisstion and obsolescenca.

\While the unif rates based on sguare melres can be suppored by misked evidence (Leve! 2], the estimates of residual vahes, useiud lite, pattem of conswmgtion and esset
condition thal are used bs exculale sccumulaled Sspraciabion esmgrise unsbesrvable inputs (Lavel 3). Where thess oiher inputs Bre significant t th valuatan the overal
valustion has been caseified &5 Leval 3. The valuation's sensitivity to these inpubs is summarised balow

Infrastructure Assels (Level 3)

Al Coungl mirastrichure assels wane 18 valusd ugsing willen down eurent replecement cost. This valuation comprises he sssefs cumant replacement cost (CRC) less
accurmulaed depracialion celoulaled on the basls of such cost 1o reflect the seady consumed or axpinad fubee ecanomic benefits of the asset, Council first determined (hi: gross
el of raplacmg the full sarvice potantial of the asset ard then adjusted this amount to take sceounl of the expirad senic pebenlial of he asgel.

CRE was miasured by refersnce 1o the lowest cost at which the gross future econemic banedits of the asset could currently ba oblained in fhe nermal course of business. Where
uisting assels were over deskgned, had excess capacity, or were redundant an acfustmient wis made 0 that the rasulting valuation reflected he cost of replacing the exisling
economic benafits hasad on an affcant sat of modern equivalent assels io chieve the requined level of sarvice output within Be Council's planning horzan

The unit rates (Labour and matedals) and quandiies applied to delermine the CRE of an asset or assel companen| were based on a "Groenfield” assumption meaning that the
CRE was datarmiced a5 e full cost of raplacament with 2 new asset including comgonants that may ned need to b2 replaced, such as earhworks. The writtan down cumart
replacermnant eost was delermined using methods relevant 1o the asset class as described wnder individual asset calagories bekow,

1(a} Road Infrastructure - Calculation of Current Replacement Cost

Roads and Agrodrome
Curmant Replacemen Cost

The: Read Matwark has heen segmented. Linit rates ame applied to the individus mad companents seal, pawvemant, formation, footpaths, Noodways, cubverts and kerb & channel
of each read in order 1o determing the reglacement cost

The unit rates assume a0 ncremental Greeafiekds appreach and exclude Brownfiel cost components. Thess unit rates are estimated using sfarmatan collaled from cost
guides, historical casts, contractar rabes, Tulure warks, regions! information and the Quesnsknd Road Aliance projgct data, Prirmany Fclors wsed in @ssumpeons on unit rabes ans-
1) R mialertals have bean sowrced locally from grawel pits for unseaied mads; 2) Waler 18 availatie at ow to moderale cost for rural roed work (<20 km); 3) Confract crushing
wlillzed for aggregate for sesling and aggregasion of sealing projects and renewsls 10 reduce low quantity works 2nd increase economies of scale; 4) Cuality of material used In
pavement construction and extent of cormpastion of farmation vared based on road type and herachy:

The last full indepandant waluation of road infrastuetune was underieken affective 30 June 2016 and was eonfucled by Austialis Assel Advisory Group
Acowmulsted Depreclation

The remaining useful ite was measured basad primarily an inspected physical condition data for visitle assets and chranologcal canstrction dates far underground o
in@ccessble assals. The condition data was colected hrouagh an extensive suréey that consisted of physical inspection of 68, 5% of rural shine reads and 100% inspaction of
urhan sealed reads. The pyhsical eonditan score was then combined wilh any relevan| cbeolesance factors b arve af an adopled remaining usadul ife. Tha condition soone was
ulilised on a sliding scale of those assels whena physical condition is difficull to accurately maasure dug fo short maintenance cycies or clher croumstances

The condition rafing inpuls can be defined in e following takble:

Dascription % of LHe Remaining

10 Mew assel 100%:

] Mesr new assal o refurbshed assel BoRe

B Excelenl candilion, minima! dataricration noted B

7 ieny good condition with early slages of detenaration %

3] Good conditicn, some signs of deterloration E0%

] Fair t good condition, daar signs of saterioration avident &%

4 Paar o falr condifion with chear deterioration. Moderata mairienance requiremeanis 40%

3 Poor conditian, clear detedoration, high maintenance reguired. Renewal raquired 0%

y ey poos candilion wilh severa dedesioraton 200

1 Extremety paor conditon with almosd failed 1w
1] Failed assed, inhabitable, inoperaie H ]

Rernaining Bves usad in the depreciation calulalions ane estimated using Thres {3} different methods: congilian, known age and esbmaled age.
Estimaled usaful lives and residual values are disclosad in Nole 11
Porcanfage of ASsels Ingpeched

58 5% of shing rural reads & 1009 of urban saaked roads wee inspacted as part of he valugtion. Mane of the sealed pavement or any farration was Inspacted due 10 the in-
accessible pature of e asset companant 18 of 28
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Ha) Water and Sewerage Infrastruciure - Caleulation of Written Down Current Reglacement Cost
Water and Sewerage
Curand Replacemen Cost

Waler and sewarage infrasiruciure air values wene delsmingd oy indepandent valuars, Azsatye Py Lid effectve 30 Jung 2014, GRG was calkopfaled based on expactad
replacement cosls.  In all ceses the assets were disaggregated o companent leval ba ensure 3 reliable maasun of cosl and senice capacily and detenoraion of asimated
remalning e

Aaselials Cosl Models woene Darived from the following sources:

- Assefval datahasa

- Schedule rates for conslruclion of assel or similar asseds

H Cosl curves darived by axparisnce

- Prica indax tabias

- Recent contract and lender data

- Refavanl Indicas for bulding and consineclion, and

- Suppliers” quatalions

Fachars takan indo account in detarmining replacement cosls included:

. Development factors - fhe area in which developmant lakes place (&g Rural areas would heve Iitle or no rastoration requiremants, whisaas a high densily area would
hawe large amounts of high guakly foeipaths, road paverments and associated infrastruciure thad would reguing reinstatement, and would alse requing Sk contrel).

- Soil Factors - The typas of sol or olher surfece materisd {e.g. Areas where 8ol ts sandy are diflicull i excavala and would require sharing while sress whan the ol s
generally free of rock would not present any great difficulty far excevetion).

. Depth Fachors - All waler assels ane in lrenches al of abowe 800mm in death, Most sewarage assels ars in trenches [ess than 1.6m and Councl will feling sewers rathar
than raplace them.

Accumuialed Depreciation

In determining accwmulaled depreciafion, assels were sithar Subjiect o a sile inspeclion or an assassmant {0 datermine namaining useful lile. Whehe sile ingpactions were
conducted (e for active assets), the sssels wene allocatad a condibion assessment, which was used to estimale remaining useful life 23 1abled balow

Dascription 9% Life Remaining

10 Brand new o rehabilitated 1o new 100%
! Haar new with na visible dededoration ao%

8 Excalant overall condition early stages of deterioralion 8O

7 Wery gond overall condition with absiows deterioralion evident TO%
& Good gwarall condition, obvious gabarioration, seniceability impaired wery slightly 0%
A Fair awarall condition, abvious daterisration, soma sanvicaability lass i
4 Fair to paor owerall condition, owious daterioretion, seniceabiity loss A0%
3 Poor owersll conddion, olbvious delsricration, some seniceatdity less, high mainenance costs b1
2 Wery poar ovesall condition, ssvers delenaralion, very Righ mainenance costs. Consider renewal %%
1 |Exiremely poar condilion, severe sendcaabilily problems, renewal required Immediately 10%
i} Faled assed, Mo longer sarvicsable. Shoukd nal reman in gervice 0%

Whera 538 inspactions ware naot conducted (Le. for passive aseats and actve assats for which no sits imspeciions ware undertaken), the remaining usefl B was caleutaled on
&n afe basis after laking into consideration cumant and plannad mairtenance recands

For wagtewatar gravity mains the assumption shat tha pipes will e reined was adopted. The fair valies e Sewer gravily mains was detemined 25 follows:

+ For &l pipes, replacement cosl was delermined based on replacameant by trench excavation, usefu e was dabermined &s the pipe useful life plus the retne usaful life, and 1he
pipe Fair value was based on age

« Where pipes have been relingd, Bie okl pipe usebul life was determined as the pipe age when the reline cocurmed plus the raling life.
+ Thie reliming of pipes was valued at relne rates and dapraciated gwar thi refine life (T0 years). Tha raling fair value was based on aga

I Auguest, 2014, 1,45 kms of the sawersge systam was mlined afer inital visual assessmants of the CCTV fodtage indicaled that a number of joint displacements, intruding
junctions, fraciusng lengilud@naly ard creumbarantialy as wall a8 rool and dabris wihin Me irver of the szeets Tha ralining wark ulilsed EX PV linng. The product i
guaraniead for between 30 . 25 years by Abergeldie Comalex Infrastricetne, the company that undertook the wark. However, discussions with our Engineer, Stuart Bouma have
ndicated 3 studies thal heve been completed that have stated that PVG pips has a longevity in excess of 100 wears and that it would be further protaciad by baing inside the
ayialing Sewersgn pipas

Tha ralining I treated &8 an addilicn and degraciabad a3 & separats companant io the existing pipa and that the ramaining usaul ie af tha existing pipe would than be consisient
with the: useful life of the relining.

GGiven (e studies hat pregict that PUYC nipng has ausaful life of in Gxcags of 100 years, we have given the rédining 8 usell [#e equivalent b the remaining uselul lile of the
axiating pipe

(iii} Changes in Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs {Level 3)

The changes in Lavel 3 asseks with mcuring Tair value measuefements are patailed in Maoba 11

(v} Valuation Processes

Ciouncils valuation policies and proceduras are s by the firance commitiza of tha axecutive managemar taam which comanses the Cheef Executive Officar and the Finance
Manager. They are reviewsd annually 1aking Inlo consideration an anakss of mavements in fair vakie and oihes relevant information. Council's cumant palicy for the: vaksation of
properly, plant and egquipment is sat out in Mota 12 (1), Mon-recuning falr valus nﬁsg?rﬂﬁzs are made &l the poinl of reclassification by a registened values
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Pajyables
Trade creditors are recognized upen reseipt of e goods or sarvices ordered and are reasured al ihe agreed purchasaiconiract price rat of appicabik discounts other than
conlingent discounts, Amounls owing are unsecurad and are generally seitad on 30 day terms.

Liabifties are recognisad for amglogas benalits such as wages and salaries, snnual leave and long senvce leave in respect of sendcas provided by fhe employess up bz tha
meporfing date. Liabiliies for emgloyee benefits are assessad at each repariing date.

A liailily for salarias and wages is recogrised and measured as fhe amaownt unpaid a1 the reporling date at cument pay rates in respect of employess’ sarvices up 1o that dale,
Thig Rability reprasants an accrnued expense and is repored in Nale 13 as a payable,

Annual Lesve

A liability for annual ave is recegnised. Amowts oxpecied fo be satfled within 12 months (the curent porian) arg ealeulaed on cvant wage end salary levals and includes
relaled emplopes an-costs. Amouns nol expecied 1o be seflled within 12 months (Ihe non-curen) potian) are calculatad on projecied future wage and salary kvels and retabed
employes on-cosis, and are discounted to present values. This lisbility represanls an acciied expense and (s repared in Mole 13 as a payable,

As Councl does not have an uncondtiongl right to defer this lisbility beyond 12 months annual lesve is classified 8s & current liakdity

Sick Leave
Council hes an obligation to pey sick leave on lermination (o carsin employeas and therafore 2 liability has besn recognised fr this gbigation, This liabdily represents an accrued
cpanse and is raporied in Nofe 13 a5 a payatble

Superarnution
The superannuation expense for the reparting period is the amaunt of the cantrbuticn the Council makes i the suparanmaton plan which provides benelils 1o s employees.
Dedails of those arangements ane sei oul in Nole 19

Council
m7 2018
Blate $ 3

Currant
Creditors and accruals 434 G494 352,793
Annual bzava 320,055 304, 230
Sick leave 164,811 124,851
Ohar entilements 27.880 148,604

947,630 BO1.577
Borrowings and Borrowing Costs

Barrowings are initially recognised al fair value plug any directly atinioutable fransachon costs, Subsequent to initial recognition these Liabilties are measured al amomsad cost.
In sccardance wilh the Local Govemment Reguiation 2012 Gowcil adopts an annual debd policy that sels oul Council's planned borrowings for the nat nine years. Councl's
currant palicy is toonly bormow fior capsal projacts and for @ term no longer than the expected life of the assal. Councl also aims to comply with tha Queensland Treasury
Camgarabien's borrowing guidelines and ensure thal sustzinabiliy ndcatons remain within acceptable levels atall fimes. All Boeroaing cosls are expensed i the period in which
thiey @re incumed, Mo borrowing costs ane cepltalised on qualifying assets.

Current
Loans - Quesnsland Treasury Corporafion 48,510 44 08y
48,519 45, 687

MNon-current

Loans - Quesnsland Treasury Corparation 1,160,046 1,207,138
i 1-EI:I|9-'IE 1,207,128

Loans - Queensiand Treasury

Opening balance al beginriag ol Nrancial year 1,254 025 1,303,063

Principal regayments {44,580} {#6.038)

Book value at end of financial year 1,209,465 1,254,025

The OTC lean markat valua at lhe reporting dabe was $1,283 402 43, Thig iepresants the value of tha debt if Caurcl repake 0 at that date. As it is the intention of Council 1o hokd
e dibd for its tarm, no prosision |e reguired o be mads in these accounts.

Mo Assets have been plecged s sacunty by the Council for any liabilites. Howaver, all foans ama guaranbaed by the Quoensiand Govarnman,
Al borrowings ana in $A4 denominated amounts and cared sl amotised cost, intarest being expensed as it scrues. Expecled final repayment da & 1510 Juna 2036, There has
bagn no defaults or breaches of the loan agréament during the penod.

Prircipal and Irmenast repapments afe made quartarly in EEAars.
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15 Provisions

17

Long Senvice Laave

Thee pravision for long service eeve raprasans e present value of (he estimated fufure cash outflows bo be made in respect of services pravided by employees up o e
regoning dabe. The liabisty is calculated using cwrent pay rales and projected fulure increases in those rates and includes refaled emplayee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted
for tha probatlity of the employes remaining i the Councl's emplayment or ciner sssotiated emplymeant which would rasull in the Councl being requines 10 meet e kabiity,
Adjustmants ara then mage 1o sllow for e praparian of e benedil earmed fo date, and the rasull is discounted to present value, The interes] rates sllaching to Commenwealtn

Goverrenent guaranteed secwitios at the reporting date are ueed 1o discount the estimated future cash outfiows o their presant value.

Where empiayees have mel (e grerequisite lergth of service and council foas not have an unconditional right 1o dafier thes liability beyond 12 months long senica leave s

classified a5 a currant liability. Omeanvss # i dassified a5 noa-cumend,

miT

Cuirrent Mote 3
Long servica [eava 20 s

202 884
Mon-Current
Long semice |eawa 74,082

79,083

Diatailz of movemenls in provisions:
Long Service Leave
Balance ai beginning of Bnancial year 58 445
Long serviee leave entilement arising 2117
Long sarvice entilament extinguished taar
Long service enlilemant paid AL
Balance 8l end of financial year 282076

Asset Revaluation Surplus

Council
2016

208 462
208482

45 965

48,885

315,862
WETT
{28,000)
{87,012)
258 448

The assel revaluaticn surplus comprises adjusiments relating (o changes in value of propety. plant and eguipment that do nal result from the use of those assets. Mat
incresmantal changas in the camying value of daseas of non-current assats since thealr infis! recogniton are accumulated in tha assel revaluation surplus

Increasas and decreases on revalualion are olfset within a class of assels.

\Whare a class of essets i decreased on revalualion, el decneass is offsel firsl against {he amawn] remeining in the assal revaluation surplus in resgect of that class. Any

Excess i freated a5 an expense.

When an assel s dispoaad af e ameunt repoaed in aurplus in respect of Ihat assel i3 relained in the assel revaluation surplus and not irensfarred to retsined surplus.

27

Movemants in the Assel Revaluation Surplue were ag follows: Mote $
Balanca at baginning of fnancal year 05 612318
Med adustment ¥ non-curmant assats at end of penod o reflect a change in current fair value:

Land and improvemenls

Buildings and other struciunzs

Road infrasiruciers

Asmndrome infrastrucisne

Seworage

Walbar -
Balanca at end of financial year 85,512.316

s
Assel Revaluation Surplus Analysis
Tha clesing balanca of the asgsel revaluation suples comprsas the folowing asset catagonies:
Land and improvements G4 433
Buikdings 12,428,200
Foad infrastnuciure 68,281,280
Seweraps 2930
Water 2,568 660
Purodronmd infrastraciung FT.T05
85,612,318
—pn ey

Commitments for Expanditure
Contraciual Commitments
Contractusl commilments al end of financiel year but not recognizad in the financial salements ae as Tolows
Plant and Vehicles .
Buildings 375 7ET

ATH.TET

210f 28

Council
2016

5
54,333,318

174,000
2554, TH3
11,885, 7EE)

BS512318

B4 4352
12.422,260
8,281,200

2920

2,566,680

Q17,7058

65,512,316

1,000,000

1,000,000
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18 Contingent Liabilities

1%

Dieails and estimales of masimum emounts of conbingant kabdites ane as folaws:

Local Government Mutual

The Counc is 8 mamber of the Local Government Mutual Lishility Salf-insurance Pool, LGM Ousensland, in e event of the poal baing wound up or iLis unatls to meet itz debts
& they fall due, the trust dead and s provide that any accurmulated deficil will be met by the individual poa membars 0 the samde: propotion &s Meir contriswlan s to the tatal
poal contributions in raspect 1o any year that a defcl anses

Mg af 30 June 2047 the financial stabements regoried an accumulated swplus and it is ot anbcipaled any iadity wil arise.

Local Government Workeare

The Council iz 2 membear af he Queansiand Local Govamment Warker's Compensation Sef-insurance Schame, Local Govamment Workeare, Under this schame the Counci
hias provided an indemnty towards 8 bank guarantas b cover bad dabts which may remain showd the Seif rsurence Licence ba cancelled and thers was nsuficint funds
avallable b cover outstanding Fahitsas. Only the Queenstand Governments Waorkers Compensation Authoriy may call on ary parl of the guarantee shauld the above
circwmstances arise. The Cowncl's maximum expasune 2o the bank guarantee is 544 364 44,

Superannuation
The Council conbibubes Lo the Local Govemment Superannustion Schame (id) (the schema). The scherne i & mult-amployer plan 25 defimed in fhe Australlan Accounting
Standard AASE11S Employes Benefiis,

Thie Gueensland Local Govermment Superannuation Board. the tustes of the scheme, sdvised (hat the Local Government Superannuation Schame was & complying
suparannualion schema for the purpase of the Commonweaith Superannuation Industry (Supervson) Legislsion.

The schemea has thres (3) elemenls refenred to &5
- The City Defined Benafits Fund (COBF) whish covers farmer mambers af the City Super Defined Bangfts Fund
- Tha Regional Dafined Barefits Fund (Regional DEF) which covars Defined Banest Furd members working for regional local govemments; and
= The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF)

Trna ABF is & dafined conbibiution schame as cafmed in AASE 119, Counc has no liability b or iMenest in the ABF other than the paymen of the statulory conirputions as
required by the Local Goverameal Act 2009

Council doas not have any employsas who #e members of the COSF and, thansfore, is not exposed ko fhe obligaions, essels or cosls associated with (his fund.

The Reglonal DBF is & defmed berefil plan as defined in AASBE119. The Council is nat able 10 account for the Fegonal DBF a5 a defined benafit plan in accardance wih
AASE11% because the scheme is unabile to account to tha Council fer s preaorienate share of the definad benefi obkgation, plan assels and casts. The fundng policy adopted
in respest of the Regional DBEF 15 dirzciad a1 ensuring that fhe benelils accrung to members and bansfcianies are fully lunded as they fall due.

Aty amaunt by which the fund i over or under funced wod arity affect future tanefits and conbributions b the Regional DBF, and is not &n assel ar liabifity of i Council.
Acsaedingly (hare |8 na recognition in the fnancial statementa of any over or under funding of (he schems.

As &1 1ha raporting date, the assels of the scheme are sufficient ko mesd the vesled benedits.

The most recant aciuarial assessment of the scheme was unertaken as at 1 July 3015, The actuary ndicated that *At the vahsalion date of T Juy 2015, the nat assels of Ma
sehame axcesded the vestad benefits and the scharme was in a satisfactory fnancial position as at be valuaiion dake.”

I the 2015 actuarial repoet the Bctuary has recommended no change 1o the employer conbibubion levals al this Lime.

Unider 1he Local Govemment Act 2004 Fi rusles of the scheme has the power Lo levy addilional contrbutions on Ceancils which have emplmsees in the Regional DBF when the
aCchuary Bdvises such aoditonal conlritaulions ere payabie - narmally when the assets of the DEF ana insufficient 1o mesl rmembers” benafils.

Thers ane cumently 72 entities contributing to fhe Regional DEF glan and ary changes in contribution rates would apply equally b ali 72 enttes. Bouia Shire Council made less
than 4% of tha total contributicns 1 the pkan i tha 2016-17 financial year.

The next actuarial investigation will be conducted as at 1 Juy 2018

benefit was:

Council
Mol 2047 26
5 H
Superannuation canfributions paid by Council to the scheme for empioyees g 285 AT 304 T4
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20 Reconclliation of Net Result for the Year to Nel Cash Inflow (outflow] from Operating Activities

et result
Non-cash Bems
Depreciation and amortisalion

Inwgsting and devalopment actwilies:

Mel (ProfitiLoss on disposal of non-cunent assets
Capital grants and conlribubions

Changes in operating assets andiLisbilities:
{Increase) decreass in receivabies
(Increaseldacreasa in imventony
Increaseldecrease) in payables
Increasedecrease) in other provisions

Mat cazh inflow from eperasing ackvities
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Boulia Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Instruments.

Boulia Shire Council has exposure 1o the following risks arising from financial instruments
- Credit risk

- Liguidity risk

- Market risk

Thig note provides informatian (both quaktative and quantitative) to assist statement users evaluats the significance of
financial instruments on the Council's financlal position and financial performance, including the nature and extent of risks and
hiv the Councl manages these exposures.

Financial Risk Management

Boulia Shire Council is respansible for the establishment and oversight of the Risk Manasement Framewari, together with
developing and monitoring Risk Managermeant Policles.

Council's management approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing credit, liquidity and
market righ.

The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyss the risks faced, to sat appropriate limits and
contrals and to monitor thess risks and adherence against imis. The Coundl aims to manage valatify to minimise petential
adverse effects on the financial parformance of the Council.

Boulia Shire Council does nalt anter inte darivatives.
Credit Risk

Credit Rizk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails ko meet its contractual cbligations. These
obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers,

Exposure to credit risk is managed throwgh regular analysis of credit counterpary aodity to meet payment abligations, The

carrying amount of financial assets represants the maximum credit exposure,

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Quesansland Treasury Corparation (QTC) or similar State £
Commonwealth Bodies or financial institutions in Austraiia, in line with the reguirements of the Statutony Bodies Sinancial
Amrangements Act 7882,

Mo Collateral is held as secunty relating to the financial assets held by Boulia Shire Council

The fallowing table represants the maximum axposure to credit risk based on tha carrying amounis of financial assets at the
end of the reponting period:

Council
Mote 207 2016

Financial Assets % g

Cash and equivalents g 14,951,044 117781149

Raceivables - rates 10 BE, 585 195,581

Receivablas - other 10 1,510,317 1,266,442
Other Credit Exposures
Guarantees 18 44,364 67,058
Total Financial Assels 16,601,711 13,412 200

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Council may be exposed to credit risk throwgh s Investments in the QTC Cash Fund and QTS Working Capital Facility.
The QTC Cash Fund is an asset menagemant portfalio that invests with a wida range of high credit reted counterparties,
Daposits with the OTC cash fund are capital guaranteed. Working cepital facility depesits have a duration of one day and all
investments are required to have a minimum cradit rating of "A-", therafore the likelinood of the counterpany having capacity
to meet its financial commitments is sirang.

Cther Financial Azseis
Other investments are held with financial institutions, which are rated AAA 10 AA- based on rating agency Standard and Poor
ratings, and whilst not capital guarantesd, the likelihood of a credit failure is assesged as remale
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Boulia Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Recaivablas

In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power 1o sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts, In effect this
power protects the Council against credit risk in the cass of defaulis

In other cases, the Council assessas the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal busingss credil
protection procedures to minimise the risk,

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is dizclosed in the following table:

Caouncil
2017 2016
§ §
Mot past due 1,456 806 1,235,603
Pagt due 3160 days 7473 2,830
Past dus §1-90 days 1,430 4,340
More than 90 days 227,919 100,227
Impaired {07 405) (87 408)
Taotal 1,596,303 1,245,685

Liquidity Risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligations associated with its financial lablities
that are settied by delivering cash or another financial asset

Boulia Shire Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its normal cowrse of busingss and through its bormowings with QTC,

The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both sho
and bang tesm, o caber for unexpected valatiity in cash flows. These facilities ane disclosed in Mobe 14

The following table sets out the Bquidity risk in relation to financial liabiltses hekd by Councl, It represents the remaining
contractual cash flows (Principal and interest) of financial lisbilities at the end of the reporing period, excluding the impact of
natting agreemeants.

Council
Total Carryirg
Ote 1 year | 1te §years | Over 5 years | Contractual
Amount
Cash Flows
£ % $ ¥ §
2017
Trade and other payables 434 684 ] 0 434,634 434 534
Loans - QTG o4 597 379,588 1,233,861 1,708,147 1,200,138
520,581 370, 588 1,233 661 2,142 B31 1,643,822
2018
Trade and other payables 352,793 0 0 362,793 152,753
Loans - OTC o4 897 374,588 1,328,558 1,803, 044 1,254 025
447 690 379 588 1,328,558 2,155 836 1,606,817

The ouiflows in the above table are not expected to cocur significantly earlier or for significantiy differsnl amounts than
indicaled In the table.
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Boulia Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017
Market Risk
Market risk Is the risk thal changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value of its
hoddings af Ninancial instruments.

Interesf Rate Risk
Caouncil is exposed 1o interest rate risk through Investments with QTC and ather financlal Institutions,

Council has access W@ mis of variable and fixed rate funding oplions through QTG so thal infterest rate risk exposure can be
rinlrmised.

Senaiivily
Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assels and liabilibes based on the carmying amount at
raporfing date.

Tha following interest rate sensitivily analysls depicls whal effect a reasonably possitle change in interest rates (assumed to
b 1% would have on the profit and egulty, based on the carrying valuss at the end of the reporting period. The calculation
assumes that the change in interest rates would be beld constant over the periad.

Net Carrying Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity
Amount 1% increase | 1% decrease| 1% Increase | 1% docrease

Council 5 $ E $ $
2017
QTC Cash Fund 14,716,224 147,162 [147,162) 147,162 (147 ,162)
Loans - QTC* 1,208 485 N - B _
Net Total 15,925,669 147,162 {147,162}, 147,162 (147,162}
2016
QTC Cash Fund 11,658 822 116,588 (116, 588) 116,588 (116,588)
Loans - QTG 1,254,025 - - - -
Net Total 12,912 847 116,588 {1186,588)/ 116,588 {116,588)

*QATC Generlc Debt Pool - the Genenc Debl Pool products approximale a fixed rabe loan. There is negligible impact on interesat
sensitivily from changes in interest rales for Generic Debl Pool borrowings.

Fair Value
The Tair valug of receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the orginal Iransaction, |ess any allowance
far impairmant.

Thia fair value of boftowings wilh QTC is based on he makel valee of debl cutslanding. The markel value of a dabt
obligation is the discounted valee of Tulure cash Nows basad on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required 1o
bie repald i this was to sccur al balance date. The marked value of debl is provided by OTC and is disclosed in Mote 14

QTC applies a book rate apgroach in the management of debd and interes? rale sk, 1o limit the impact of markat value
moverments Lo clienl's cosl of funding. The book valuwe represenis the carrying valwe based on amordised cost using the
effective inlerest method.

Transaections with Related Partles
{a) Transactions with Associates
Mil

{b) Transactions with Joint Venturas
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Boulia Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

(c) Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP)

KMP include the Mayor, Councillors, Council's Chief Executive Officer and some Executive Management. The compensation paid to KMP for

2016/17 comprises:
2017
$
Short-term employee benefits 538,525
Post-employment benefits 99,223
Long-term benefits 31,664
Total 669,412

Detailed Remuneration disclosures are provided in the annual report.

(d) Transactions with other Related Parties

Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlied or jointly controlled by KMP or their close family
members. Close family members include a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse.

Details of transactions between council and other related parties are disclosed below:

2017
Details of Transaction Additional infermation 3
Employee expenses for close family members of key management 22(d)(i) 144,187
personnel
Purchase of materials and services from entities controlled by key 22(d)(i) 185,545
management personnel

{i) All close family members of key management personnel were employed through an arm's length process. They are paid in accordance with

the Award for the job they perform.

(i} The purchases of materials and services from entities controlled by key management personnel were on an arm's length basis in accordance
with Council's procurement policies. The total disclosed includes the following:

Payments charged by entities controlled by key management

personnel Detalls of related party $
Anthony Britton, a contracter employed by Council to
undertake various construction works throughout the
Purchase of materials and services from entities controlled by key course of the year, is a related party of Councilior 155.476
management personnel Rebecka Britton. He was engaged on commercial '
terms and all transactions have occurred in
accordance with Council's relevant procurement policy.
Councillor Rebecka Britton is a sole trader, who
Purchase of materials and services frem entities controlled by key throughout the financial year provided cleaning 27115
management personnel services to Council. The engagement occurred in '
accordance with Council's procurerent policy.
Purchase of materials and services from entities controlled by key Various other minor and immaterial related party 2954
management personnel transactions. '
Total 185,545

(e) Loans and guarantees to / from Related Parties

Council does not make loans te or receive loans from related parties. No guarantees have been provided.

(f) Transactions with Related Parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the entities and people that are related parties of council live and operate within the Boulia Shire Council. Therefore, on a regular basis
ordinary citizen transactions occur between Council and its related parties. Some examples include;

- Payment of rates
- Gym membership
- Dog registration

- Venue hiring

- Borrowing books from a council library

Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure, where they are made on the same terms and conditions available to the

general public.
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Boulia Shire Council
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Management Certificate
For the year ended 30 June 2017

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Sections 176 and 177 of the Local Government Regulation 2012
(the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 for the establishment and
keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages 3 to 27, present a true and fair view, in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, of the Council’s transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year.

. v L«,-\,ZLCC{,(J

EC Luto) {7

Mayor Chief Executive Officer

Eric Britton

Lynn Moore

Date:_&l /o f_&:}" Date.(a / /C',QQCJI"/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Councillors of Boulia Shire Council
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion |
| have audited the financial report of Boulia Shire Council.
In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2017, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor
and Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial report section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises the information included in Boulia Shire Council’s annual report
for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the financial report and my auditor’s
report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, the other information was the Current Year
Financial Sustainability Statement and Long-Term Financial Sustainability Statement.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the Current Year
Financial Sustainability Statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.















Boulia Shire Council
Current-year Financial Sustainability Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Measures of Financial Sustainability How the Measure is Calculated Actual Target

Council's performance at 30 June 2017 against key financial ratios and targets:

Net result {excluding capital items)

Operating Surplus Ratio divided by total operating revenue 2.85% 0% and 10%
(excluding capital items)
Capital expenditure on the

Asset Sustainability Ratio replacement of assets (renewals) 10.82% > 0%
divided by depreciation expense.
Total liabilities less current assets

Net Financial Liabilities Ratio divided by total operating revenue ~ -80.05% <60%
(excluding capital items)

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

The current year Financial Sustainability Statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013. The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared
on an accrual basis and are drawn from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2017

This Current-year Financial Sustainability Statement has been prepared pursuant to Section
178 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this Current-year Financial
Sustainability Statement has been accurately calculated.

coads (Fyres

|Mayor hief Executive Officer
Eric Britton Lynn Moore

Date:@!@f& ’. 7

Date: / /







INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
To the Councillors of Boulia Shire Council

Report on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
Opinion |
| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Boulia Shire

Council for the year ended 30 June 2017, comprising the statement, explanatory notes, and the
certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer.

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Boulia Shire Council for
the year ended 30 June 2017 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current
year financial sustainability statement section of my report.

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in Australia. | have also
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General of
Queensland Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting responsibilities
under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement may not be suitable
for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

Other information comprises the information included in Boulia Shire Council’'s annual report for
the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the Current Year Financial Sustainability
Statement and my auditor’s report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, the other
information was the General Purpose Financial Report and Long-Term Financial Sustainability
Statement.

My opinion on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate
opinion on the General Purpose Financial Report.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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